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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 

SPECIAL TELEPHONIC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Thursday December 19, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
CJPRMA Office 

3201 Doolan Road, Suite 285 
Livermore, CA 94551 

(925) 837-0667 
 

Dial In #: 866 - 866 – 2244    
Participant Code: 1414792 

 
1. City of Alameda, 2263 Santa Clara Avenue, Room 280, Alameda, CA 94501 
2. City of Chico, 411 Main Street., Chico, CA 95927 
3. City of Fairfield, 1000 Webster Street, Fairfield, CA 94533 
4. City of Fremont, 3300 Capitol Avenue, Fremont, CA 94538 
5. City of Livermore, 1052 S. Livermore Avenue,  Livermore, CA 94550 
6. LPFD, City of Pleasanton, 123 Main Street, Pleasanton, CA 94566 
7. City of Lodi, 221 West Pine Street, Lodi, CA 95240 
8. NCCSIF, City of Lincoln, 600 6th Street, Lincoln, CA 95648 
9. City of Petaluma, 11 English Street, Petaluma, CA 94952 

10. City of Redding, 777 Cypress Avenue, Redding, CA 96001 
11. REMIF, City of Sonoma, 414 West Napa Street, Sonoma, CA 95476 
12. City of Richmond, 450 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804 
13. City of Roseville, 311 Vernon Street,  Roseville, CA 95678 
14. City of San Leandro, 835 East 14th Street, San Leandro, CA 94577 
15. City of San Rafael, 1400 Fifth Avenue,  San Rafael, CA 94915 
16. City of Santa Rosa, 100 Santa Rosa Avenue, Room 9, Santa Rosa, CA 95404 
17. SCORE, Town of Loomis,  3665 Taylor Road, Loomis, CA 95650 
18. City of Stockton, 400 E. Main Street, 3rd floor, Stockton, CA 95202 
19. City of Sunnyvale, 456 West Olive Avenue, City Attorney’s Office, Sunnyvale, CA 94086 
20. City of Vacaville, 650 Merchant Street, Vacaville, CA 95688 
21. YCPARMIA, City of Woodland, 77 W. Lincoln Avenue, Woodland, CA 95695 
22. Gibbons & Conley, 3480 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 200, Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. CLOSED SESSION 
 

• None 
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IV. ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

V. PRESENTATIONS

• None

VI. THIS TIME IS RESERVED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON
MATTERS OF BOARD BUSINESS.  STATE LAW PROHIBITS ACTION BY THE BOARD ON NON-AGENDA
ITEMS.

VII. COMMUNICATIONS

A. Board Members
B. General Manager/Secretary
C. Next Scheduled Meetings: Executive Committee (01/16/2020) Loomis, CA

Board of Directors (03/19/2020) CJPRMA Office 

VIII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

• None

IX. CONSENT CALENDAR

• None

X. ACTION (A) AND INFORMATION (I) CALENDAR

1. Approval of Annual Financial Audit and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
year ended June 30, 2019.  (A) (Pages 3 - 124)

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2



Back to Agenda  
 

CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS 
RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
AGENDA BILL 

 

ITEM: 1 TITLE: APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT AND 
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019   MEETING: 12/19/19 

GENERAL MANAGER:   

 
Recommended Actions 
Approval of 1) the Annual Financial Audit and 2) the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. 

 
Strategic Direction 
This item addresses Strategic Goal 1, “Employ Customizable Products and Services to be Competitive” 
and Strategic Goal 3, “Foster Informed and Engaged Board Leadership.” 

 
Item Explanation 
Under separate attachment is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 2019. The report will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) for review of the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting award. The 
Authority has received the award annually since 2015. 
 
The report was prepared by Lola Deem, Finance Officer, and audited by Ms. Amy Meyer, of Maze & 
Associates. Maze & Associates have once again issued an unmodified opinion. 
 
The following is a summary of the financial highlights and changes from the previous year, for fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2019: 
 

• Assets - decreased $6.8 million (10.5%) – this decrease was a result of an $11.3 million decrease 
in cash and investments for the payment of claims. 

• Liabilities – increased $11.4 million (26.4%) – this was due primarily to a $10 million increase in 
the reserve for losses. 

• Revenues – increased $848,896 (5.5%) – primarily due to an increase in member contributions 
in the property program for the self-funded layer $416,662 and drone, excess cyber and 
pollution coverage $231,864.  

• Operating expenses – increased $9.4 million (32.1%) 

 Claim loss provision expense increased $8.6 million (40.1%) – includes claims paid and the 
change in claims payable (case reserves and IBNR). 
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 General administrative services increased $232,772 (13.1%) – due to an increase in 
personnel expenses. 

• Investment income increased $4.6 million (1101%) - due to interest income earned of $1.4 
million and a $2.7 million gain in the market value of investments. 

• Rent and Other Income decreased $20,851 (7.7%) - reflecting minimal change in lease and 
common area maintenance income. 

Overall the Authority’s net position declined $18 million (81.6%). This decrease was discussed at the 
November board meeting and is a result of return of equity in prior years combined with the increase 
and severity of claims payments. The effort going forward will be to promote equity growth.  
 
Ms. Amy Meyer, of Maze & Associates, will be present to discuss the results of the audit. 

 
The general manager recommends approval of: 

1) Annual financial audit 
2) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Impact 
1. The cost of the audit will be approximately $25,000. 

 
Exhibits  
1. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. 
2. Memorandum on Internal Control for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. 
3. Communications for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. 
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Current market trends (as of November 2019) 

We have been informed that the reinsurance market will raise rates for the 2020-21 

program year renewal. The impact of the multiple hurricanes, earthquake in Mexico, the 

terrorist action in Nevada, and continuing wildfires in California will impact both the 

domestic market and the international marketplace. 

Market pressure and losses in the property program have resulted in increased premiums 

and higher deductibles. We anticipate that deductibles will not change for the 2019-20 

renewal, but we anticipate further increases in premium. CJPRMA has adopted the PEPIP 

coverage form as the controlling document for the property program and no longer 

maintains a standalone Memorandum of Coverage. 

The outlook for excess liability lines of coverage is uncertain now. The current environment 

for litigation in California is very challenging with increased social inflation of jury awards. 

We do anticipate that the hurricanes this year and other natural losses will motivate the 

liability underwriters to pursue increases. CJPRMA continues to sustain high value losses 

related to police claims and auto liability that have required access to reinsurance. This 

impacted premium for the 2019-20 renewal and will also affect the 2020-21 renewal. 

CJPRMA members have provided detailed exposure data to our reinsurance carriers. 

The costs of the auto physical damage market are stable now and we do not anticipate 

significant increases in rates. The increase in rates will generally be driven by the actual loss 

history of the membership. We continue to evaluate all APD losses and encourage the 

membership to actively engage in best practices for their vehicle operations. 

STRATEGIC PLANNING 

The Board of Directors conducted strategic planning in October 2019 and revised the 

strategic plan. The current Strategic Goals are as follows: 

1. Analyze Creating a Captive

2. Enhance Existing Training Programs

3. 100% Member Retention

4. Determine if Growth Should Be a Priority

5. Evaluate Premium Allocation

6. Evaluate Options to Increase Pool Equity

7. Determine if CJPRMA is an Excess Pool, a Full-Service Pool or a Hybrid

The Board of Directors adopted a program in 2008 that includes the funding of an Excess 

Loss Fund (ELF). This fund consists of funds set aside annually to be used in time of need. 

The ELF was established to be capped at $22,500,000 or five full exposures in any one 

program year. To date these funds are maintained by CJPRMA and are available to provide 

financial coverage for program years that experience significant adverse loss trends. This 

program to date has served as a safe zone for the organization and has not been called 

upon to offset losses in any program year. 

N N w K A N 
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CJPRMA owns its building and does not foresee any significant capital projects related to 

building or structures. CJPRMA also owns an additional condominium space within our 

building with a long-term tenant. 

The Board of Directors hired a new General Manager who started work in that position on 

December 4, 2018. 

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS 

CJPRMA's accounting system is organized so that each program can be accounted for and 

evaluated independently. Policy periods are also accounted for separately within each 

program. The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 

resources, revenues and expenses of each year are reported on a full accrual basis. All 

transactions are accounted for in an enterprise fund. 

CJPRMA management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls 

designed to ensure that assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that 

adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and the activities and reporting of 

the CJPRMA are in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Internal accounting 

controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The 

concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the 

benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates 

and judgments by management. 

All internal control decisions are made within the above guidelines. Management believes 

that the CJPRMA's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide 

reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 

awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to California 

Joint Powers Risk Management Authority for its comprehensive annual financial report for 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This was the fourth year that CJPRMA achieved this 

prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish 

an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This 

report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 

requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 

current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 

Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine 

its eligibility for another certificate. 

CJPRMA is a member of the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA). 

CAJPA sponsors the nation's first risk management pool accreditation program. This 

program establishes a model of professional standards, which serves as a guideline for all 

A F N N p w N N T 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 
Livermore, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund and aggregate remaining 
fund information of the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (Authority) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the enterprise fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Authority as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

1



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as a whole.  The Introductory Section, 
Supplementary Information and Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.   

The Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
Supplementary Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as 
a whole.   

The Introductory and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 16, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The management of California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA) is pleased to 
present  the  following discussion and analysis of  the operating  results,  financial condition and 
liquidity of CJPRMA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This discussion should be read  in 
conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements  included with 
this report. 

Overview of CJPRMA 

CJPRMA  is a  joint powers authority created by certain California cities and other  joint powers 
authorities to provide a pooled approach to the members’ liability coverage as established under 
Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the California Government Code (Section 6500 et seq.) 
At  June 30, 2019  it consisted of 21 members  representing over 97 public entities  throughout 
California. The program provides $40 million in excess liability coverage through a combination 
of pooled risk retention and commercial reinsurance. In addition to the liability program, CJPRMA 
provides for the group purchase of commercial  insurance for property, auto physical damage, 
environmental pollution, cyber liability and drone coverage. 

CJPRMA  is  governed  by  a  Board  of Directors  comprised  of  representatives  from  each  of  its 
members. The Board of Directors elects a seven member Executive Committee. The Board and 
Executive Committee oversee the operations of the JPA including rating, return of contributions, 
and loss control plans, as well as other activities in accordance with the JPA Agreement, Bylaws, 
and Board adopted policies and procedures. 

CJPRMA’s daily operations are administered by the General Manager. The General Manager  is 
responsible  for  implementing  the  organization’s  objectives  in  accordance  with  the  JPA’s 
organizational documents and in accordance with direction provided by the Board of Directors, 
its Officers, and the Executive Committee. 

Overview of the Authority’s Basic Financial Statements 

Generally accepted accounting principles require the issuance of entity‐wide financial statements 
as well as fund financial statements. However, since CJPRMA has only one fund and that fund is 
accounted for as an enterprise fund, the entity‐wide financial statements are also the individual 
fund statements. 

Maze & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, has performed an  independent audit of our 
financial  statements  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  auditing  standards.  The  assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues and expenses 
are reported on a full‐accrual basis. 
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The Financial statements are in three parts: 

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this part), and

2) The Basic Financial Statements, which  include the entity‐wide financial statements and
fiduciary fund statements, along with the Notes to these financial statements.

3) Required Supplementary Information

The Basic Financial Statements  comprise  the entity‐wide Financial Statements,  fiduciary  fund 
statements and notes  to  the  financial  statements. These  financial  statements provide both a 
short‐term and a long‐term view of CJPRMA’s financial activities and financial position. 

Description of the Basic Financial Statements 

CJPRMA’s financial statements are prepared  in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles  and  include  amounts  based  upon  reliable  estimates  and  judgments.  The  financial 
statements  include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes  in Net Position. Individual program accounting  is maintained for each program of the 
Authority and is provided as supplemental information to the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on CJPRMA’s assets, liabilities and deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources; the difference between them representing CJPRMA’s net position 
and pool equity. Net position  includes  the amount  invested  in  capital assets. This Statement 
provides information about the combined financial position of CJPRMA as of June 30, 2019. 

The  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses  and  Changes  in  Net  Position  presents  information 
showing total revenues versus total expenses and shows how CJPRMA’s net position changed 
during the fiscal year. All revenues and expenses are recognized as soon as the underlying event 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 
in this statement for some items that will result in the disbursement or collection of cash during 
future fiscal years (i.e. the expense associated with an increase in claims liability, involving cash 
outlay in future time periods). This Statement reports the operations of the organization for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes describe the nature of 
CJPRMA’s operations and significant accounting policies and clarify unique financial information. 
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Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results in Operations 
 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

      Increase (Decrease) 

  2019  2018  Amount  % Change 

         

Operating revenues:         

Member contributions  $16,231,697  $15,381,848  $849,849  5.5% 

Fees earned  34,050  35,002  (952)  ‐2.7% 

Total operating revenues  16,265,747  15,416,850  848,897  5.5% 

         

Operating expenses:         

Current year loss provision  11,418,220  10,473,171  945,049  9.0% 

Prior years loss provision  18,712,748  11,039,669  7,673,079  69.5% 

Settlements paid  5,761,305  8,951,297  (3,189,992)  ‐35.6% 

Settlement reimbursement    (5,761,305)    (8,951,297)  3,189,992  ‐35.6% 
Insurance premiums and 
adjustment fees  6,543,580  5,990,249  553,331  9.2% 

General administrative services  2,021,053  1,779,743  241,310  13.6% 

Total operating expenses  38,695,601  29,282,832  9,412,769  32.1% 

Operating income (loss)  (22,429,854)  (13,865,982)  (8,563,872)  61.8% 

         

Non‐operating income:         

Investment income  4,185,950  (418,101)  4,604,051  1101.2% 

Rent and other income  251,295  272,147  (20,852)  ‐7.7% 

Refunds to members  0  0  0  0 

Total non‐operating income (loss)  4,437,245  (145,954)  4,583,199  3140.2% 

Change in net position  (17,992,609)  (14,011,936)  (3,980,673)  28.4% 
         

Net position at beginning of year   22,052,565  36,064,501  (14,011,936)  ‐38.9% 

Net position at end of year  $4,059,956  $22,052,565  ($17,992,609)  ‐81.6% 

 
Total revenues  increased $848,897 (5.5%). This was due primarily to the property program.  In 
2019 a self‐funded layer of $416,662 was created in the property program. This is to assist the 
property program members in adjusting to a $100,000 loss deductible. Also in 2019, the property 
and auto physical damage premiums increased due to increased total insured values and rating. 
 
Total operating expenses increased $9.4 million (32.1%). This was due to the claim loss provision 
increasing $8.6 million (40%) from the previous year. This provision includes claims paid and the 
change  in  claims  payable  (case  reserves  and  IBNR).  The  case  reserves  are  set  by  the  claims 
administrator and the IBNR is set by the actuary. Insurance premiums increased $553,331 (9.2%) 
primarily as a result of the increase in property insurance rates. General administrative services 
experienced an increase of $241,310 (13.6%) due to increased personnel costs.  
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Investment income experienced interest earnings of $1.5 million. The fair market value increased 
by $2.7 million. This is directly related to the drop in interest rates during the reporting period 
causing the underlying value of the fixed income investments to increase in value. 
  
In  fiscal year 2019  rental and  common area maintenance  income, as a  result of  the building 
acquisition in July 2013, decreased slightly to $251,295. This was due to the renegotiation of the 
lease, which included a provision for two months’ free rent.  
 
In 2018 the Board elected to refrain from declaring a refund to members in order to reduce the 
loss in equity as significant claims losses were anticipated. As a result, there was no distribution 
of equity. A more in depth description of member refunds is addressed further in this report. 
 
Condensed Statement of Net Position  

      Increase (Decrease) 

  2019  2018  Amount  % Change 
Assets         

Current Assets  $55,082,746  $61,587,295  ($6,504,549)  ‐10.6% 

Capital Assets  2,981,675  3,065,291  (83,616)  ‐2.7% 
Other Non‐current 
Assets  0  229,875  (229,875)  ‐100% 

Total Assets  58,064,421  64,882,461  (6,818,140)  ‐10.5% 

         

Deferred Outflows  638,415  324,600  313,815  96.7% 

         

Liabilities         

Current Liabilities  23,429,100  12,848,110  10,580,990  82.4% 

Noncurrent Liabilities  31,042,225  30,244,402  797,823  2.6% 

Total Liabilities  54,471,325  43,092,512  11,378,813  26.4% 

         

Deferred Inflows  171,555  61,984  109,571  176.8% 

         

Net Position         
Net Investment in 
Capital Assets  2,981,675  3,065,291  (83,616)  ‐2.7% 

Restricted Net Position  1,108,045  19,013,911  (17,905,866)  ‐94.17% 
Unrestricted Net 
Position  (29,764)  (26,637)  (3,127)  11.7% 

         

Total Net Position  $4,059,956  $22,052,565  ($17,992,609)  ‐81.6% 

 
The  increase or decrease  in net position can provide an  indication as  to whether  the overall 
financial position of CJPRMA improved or deteriorated during the year. For the year ended June 
30,  2019  the  Authority  experienced  a  decrease  of  $18 million  (81.6%)  in  net  position.  This 
decrease was a result of $19.8 million in payment of claims.  
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Cash and Investments 

CJPRMA’s  investments are managed by Chandler Asset Management and held  in  a  custodial 
account with The Bank of New York. The managed portfolio consists of securities  invested  in 
accordance with CJPRMA’s investment policy and the California Government Code. Cash is held 
in  Fidelity  Institutional Government Money Market  Fund  #657  (Fidelity).  Fidelity  is  a money 
market  account  and  is  used  as  a  pass‐through  for  the  purchase  and  sale  of  the Authority’s 
investments. Cash is also held in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), an external investment 
pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office.  

Total cash and investments decreased $11.3 million (19.5%), from $58 million to $46.7 million. 
This decrease was due to large claim payments during the year. 

Total investment earnings for fiscal year 2019 were $4.2 million. CJPRMA’s investment income 
from interest and dividends on investments was $1.5 million in 2019. The change in fair value for 
the portfolio for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 was an unrealized gain on investments of 
$2.7 million.  

CJPRMA  carries  its  investments  at  fair  value  as  required  by  generally  accepted  accounting 
principles. At June 30, 2019 the fair value of investments was $45.7 million, the cost was $44.5 
million. The fair value currently exceeds the cost by $1.2 million.  

The ability of CJPRMA’s excess funds to earn investment income has a direct effect on the liability 
program  because  it  affords  the  ability  to  discount  the  premium  contributions  paid  by  the 
members.  When  investment  income  falls  short  of  projections,  additional  funding  may  be 
required  to  meet  actuarial  estimates.  CJPRMA  takes  these  interest  rate  conditions  into 
consideration when developing annual premium contributions. 

The following graphs depict the make‐up of CJPRMA’s cash and investments at June 30, 2019 and 
June 30, 2018. 
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Capital Asset Activity 

At the end of fiscal year 2019 there was a $3 million net investment in capital assets consisting 
of  land,  buildings  &  improvements,  office  furniture  and  equipment.  In  2013  the  Authority 
purchased  a  condo  conversion  that  occupies  the  business  office.  In  addition,  the  Authority 
acquired a  long term tenant, DaVita Dialysis, which occupies 8,125 sq.  ft. of office space. The 
tenant generated $166,962 of rental income in 2019. The Authority concluded negotiations with 
DaVita Dialysis for a new  lease that was effective May 2019. The Authority retired $50,472 of 
office furniture and equipment in 2019 and there were no acquisitions. 

More  detailed  information  about  the  capital  asset  activity  can  be  found  in  Note  3  of  the 
accompanying Financial Statements. 

Redistribution of Equity 

Through strong claims management and sound investment practices, the organization has been 
able  to  return dividends of approximately $122 million since 1989. The annual amount  to be 
redistributed  is  an  actuarial  recommendation  and  when  calculating  the  redistribution  the 
estimated outstanding losses are increased to a 90% confidence level. This is to ensure that there 
will be sufficient equity to pay losses. In an effort to grow the equity balance, CJPRMA elected 
not to redistribute excess equity to its members in FY 2017/18 and FY 2018/19. 

The following graph shows the redistributions for the last ten years. 
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CJPRMA Claims Liabilities 

The liability for claims for the liability program is an estimate of the ultimate cost of the claims. 
This  estimate  is based on  a  variety of  actuarial  and  statistical  techniques  considering  claims 
history, claim payment history, claim frequency, legislative changes of legal liability, inflation, and 
other economic and social factors.  

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, CJPRMA contracted with Aon Global Risk Consulting for 
an actuarial valuation of its claim costs. This is used to project liabilities for future years as well 
as  to  provide  projected  funding  levels  for  current  and  prior  years.  Funding  for  the  2018/19 
program year was calculated at the 70% confidence level and discounted. The 70% confidence 
level assumes that there  is a 70% chance that the amount collected will be sufficient to cover 
losses. It is discounted in order to use the present value of the required funding. The discount 
rate used was 2%.  For financial statement purposes, the liability for claims has been recorded on 
an expected and undiscounted basis. 

The changes to prior years’ claim costs are adjusted throughout the year as they occur. At June 
30, 2019, a reserve of $11.4 million was recognized for program year 2018/19 and a reserve of 
$40.4 million was recognized for prior years’ claim costs.  The total liability for claims at June 30, 
2019 is $51.8 million, which is an increase of $10 million from the previous year. 

Claim liability trends for the past ten years are shown below: 
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Claim payments and patterns are significant  factors  in the estimation of the reserve  for claim 
costs as well as in determining the member premium contributions. In 2009, the eroding financial 
situation  in California created a  fiscal crisis  for all public entities.  In an effort  to mitigate  the 
financial  impact on the Authority’s members and stabilize funding, the method for calculating 
future liability premiums was changed from the conventional actuarial approach to a rolling 10 
year average of actual  claims expenses. Allowing  for adequate  claim development,  the most 
recent year to be utilized in the calculation is completed four years prior to the commencement 
of the program year to which the formula is applied. This formula along with the creation of the 
excess loss fund and the use of investment income as a credit towards the premium reduced the 
net  liability  premiums  paid  by  the members.  In  2019  the  Authority  elected  to  not  use  the 
investment income as a credit towards the premiums in order to be able to discount the future 
liability premiums. 

During  fiscal  year  2018/19 CJPRMA  paid  out  a  net  amount  of  $19.8 million  in  claim  related 
expenses. With the cost of inflation, jury awards and legislative changes, claim costs have been 
trending up for a number of years, which has had a negative impact on the Authority’s equity.  

The line chart below shows the claim related payments made for the last ten years. The increased 
claim payments represent an industry wide trend of higher claim litigation cost.  

Excess Loss Fund 

Effective July 1, 2008 an Excess Loss Fund (ELF) was created to support future program years’ 
claim  costs.  The  goal  of  this  program  is  to  fund  a  reserve  in  the  amount  of  $22.5 million, 
equivalent to five times the self‐insured retention under the reinsurance program. Once reached, 
the  fund would not be supplemented again until such  times as  losses  required  its utilization. 
Members retain an equity interest in the fund and will only become available for redistribution 
upon approval of the CJPRMA Board of Directors. 

As of June 30, 2019, the Excess Loss Fund balance is $18,067,703. 

$3.6 

$6.5 

$9 

$7.1 

$0.5 

$7.1 

$9.5 
$12.4 

$21.0 

$19.8 

 $‐

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

M

i

l

l

i

o

n

s

Fiscal Year

Claim Payments

11



Economic Outlook and Major Initiatives 

Liability Program 

 Anticipate program contributions to increase due to increased losses.

 No redistribution of equity will be made in FY 19/20 to promote equity growth.

 Increase in self‐insured retention levels anticipated.

Property Program 

 Evaluate impact of the California fires that have affected the program members.

 Anticipate increased premiums due to property market losses.

 Evaluate funding mechanisms to support higher deductibles.

Automobile Physical Damage Program 

 No changes are anticipated.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 

These  Basic  Financial  Statements  are  intended  to  provide  citizens,  taxpayers,  investors,  and 
creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances. Questions about these Statements 
should be directed to the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority at 3201 Doolan 
Road, Suite 285, Livermore, CA 94551. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash in general checking (Note 2) $1,047,123
Investments (Note 2) 45,690,899

Total cash and investments 46,738,022

Accounts receivable 7,709,867
Interest receivable 262,149
Prepaid insurance and deposits 372,708

Total current assets 55,082,746

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets (Note 3):

Land 548,250
Building and improvements 2,821,324
Office furniture 148,237
Office equipment 394,353
Less accumulated depreciation (930,489)

Capital assets, net 2,981,675
Total Assets 58,064,421

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions (Note 7) 304,090
Related to OPEB (Note 8) 334,325

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 638,415

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 632,144
Accrued liabilities 568,085
Unearned member contributions 477,585
Reserve for losses - liability program (Note 4A) 21,751,286

Total current liabilities 23,429,100

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability (Note 7) 929,288
Net OPEB Liability (Note 8) 35,150
Reserve for losses - liability program (Note 4A) 30,077,787

Total noncurrent liabilities 31,042,225
Total Liabilities 54,471,325

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions (Note 7) 51,493
Related to OPEB (Note 8) 120,062

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 171,555

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets - liability program 2,981,675

Restricted for:
Liability program (Notes 1C and 6):

Liability program (17,401,036)
Excess Loss Reserve 18,067,703 666,667

Property program 441,378
Unrestricted for:

Auto physical damage program (29,764)
Total  Net Position $4,059,956

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES

Member contributions $16,231,697

Fees earned 34,050

Total Operating Revenues 16,265,747

OPERATING EXPENSES

Claims:

Current year loss provision (Note 4B) 11,418,220

Prior year loss reserve adjustment (Note 4B) 18,712,748

Settlements paid 5,761,305

Settlement reimbursement (5,761,305)

Insurance premiums and claims adjustment fees (Note 1C) 6,543,580

Personnel expenses 1,116,893

Maintenance and operation 904,160

Total Operating Expenses 38,695,601

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (22,429,854)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)

Interest and dividends 1,453,047

Net realized and unrealized investment gains and (losses) 2,732,903

Rent and other income 251,295

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 4,437,245

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (17,992,609)

Net Position, Beginning of Year 22,052,565

Net Position, End of Year $4,059,956

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from members $16,238,622

Payments to suppliers (309,569)

Payments to employees (744,603)

Claims paid - Authority (20,087,375)

Claims paid - reinsurance (4,490,773)

Members self insured retention paid (2,833,706)

Reimbursement of member self insured retention 3,097,851

Insurance premiums paid (6,729,701)

Cash flows from operating activities (15,859,254)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends received 1,544,184

Net realized and unrealized investment gains and (losses) 2,732,903

Rent and other income 246,103

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 4,523,190

Net change in cash and investments (11,336,064)

Cash and investments at beginning of year 58,074,086

Cash and investments at end of year $46,738,022

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 
operating activities:

Operating income (loss) ($22,429,854)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 83,616

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (4,731,339)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance and deposits (186,121)
Increase  (decrease) in accounts payable 510,975
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 331,323
Increase (decrease) in unearned member contributions 477,585
(Increase) decrease in OPEB 50,762
Increase (decrease) in retirement system (9,795)
Increase (decrease) in reserves for losses 10,043,594

Cash flows from operating activities ($15,859,254)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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ASSETS

Investments (Note 2H):
Money market and mutual funds $483,802

NET POSITION

Total net position restricted for OPEB $483,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements

CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
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ADDITIONS:

Contributions to OPEB Trust - Employer $4,227

Net Investment Income:
Interest 32,275
Investment management fees (2,663)
Benefit payments (13,408)

Change in net position 20,431

Net Position restricted for OPEB - beginning of year 463,371

Net Position restricted for OPEB - end of year $483,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements

CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

17



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 – NATURE OF THE AUTHORITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Description of the Authority and its Programs

Organization – California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (Authority) is a joint powers
authority created by certain California cities and other joint powers authorities to provide a
pooled approach for liability coverage as allowed under the California Government Code.  The
purpose of the Authority is to provide the services necessary to establish, operate and maintain a
joint program for excess liability and property damage protection for the member agencies.  The
Authority is governed by a Board of Directors comprising officials appointed by each member
agency.  The activities of the Authority include setting and collecting premiums, administering
and paying claims and related expenses and investing the Authority’s assets.

Programs – Members may select one of two limits of liability coverage with the approval of two-
thirds of the members participating in those layers of that program.  The limit of coverage offered
for the program year ended June 30, 2019 is $40 million per occurrence inclusive of the self-
insured retention.

The Authority also has a property program, which includes pollution/environmental liability,
boiler and machinery and cyber-liability, and an auto physical damage program, which are fully
insured by a commercial provider.

Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan – is an irrevocable trust used to account for contributions
and investment income restricted to pay medical benefits.  Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by the Board of Directors. Eligibility, actuarial interest rates, administration and
certain other tasks are the responsibility of the Board established by action of the Board.  The
financial activities of the Plan have been included in these financial statements in the OPEB Trust
Fund.  The Plan does not issue separate financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The Authority’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The Government Accounting
Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and
financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America.

C. Basis of Accounting

The Authority accounts for all transactions, except those related to the OPEB Plan, in a single
enterprise fund, which is a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues and
expenses.  All transactions are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus
and the full accrual basis of accounting, which means that expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred and revenues are recorded when earned, rather than when cash changes hands.

In addition to the Authority’s enterprise activities, the Authority maintains a fiduciary fund to
account for the assets held in a trustee capacity. Fiduciary funds are also accounted for using the
economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The Authority reports
the following fiduciary fund:
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 – NATURE OF THE AUTHORITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan Trust Fund (OPEB Trust Fund) is an irrevocable trust 
fund used to account for assets held by the Authority as Trustee for other postemployment 
benefits as further described in Note 8. 

Contributions from Members – Each member is assessed a contribution which is intended to 
cover the Authority’s claims, operating costs and claim settlement expenses.  Contributions are 
based on an actuarially determined rate for each coverage layer (pool), based on an estimate of 
the probable losses and expenses to be borne by that pool in the year in question.  Additional cash 
contributions may be assessed or the member’s self-insured retention may be increased on the 
basis of adverse loss experience.  Refunds to members may be made if funds are determined to be 
surplus as a result of an actuarial study.  Losses are allocated on the basis of each participant’s 
share of cash contributions.  All contributions are recognized as revenues when earned, based on 
the period covered by the contribution. 

The Authority’s method for calculating contributions is based on a rolling ten-year average of 
actual claims expenses.  The most recent year to be utilized in the calculation is four years prior 
to the commencement of the program year to which the formula is applied.  Investment income 
from the most recently completed fiscal year is credited directly toward the contribution 
calculation, instead of being spread to prior program years.  The contribution calculation is based 
upon a 70% confidence level (undiscounted).  In addition, member contributions may fund a 
portion of the Authority’s Excess Loss Reserve discussed below. 

Losses and Claims – The Authority establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate 
cost of claims (including future claims settlement expenses) that have been reported but not settled, 
and based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not reported (termed IBNR).  Because 
actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal 
liability and damage awards, claims liabilities are recommitted periodically using a variety of 
actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim 
frequency, and other economic and social factors.  A provision for inflation is implicit in the 
calculation of estimated future claims costs because reliance is placed both on actual historical data 
that reflect past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past 
experience.  Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in 
which they are made. 

The Authority has a multi-level risk sharing arrangement for its liability self-insurance program. 
Each member participating in the liability program assumes its own losses up to its retention level. 
Losses in excess of the self-insured retention are paid out of a central pool maintained by the 
Authority for each of the layers of coverage.  This central pool is funded by all of the members 
participating in that program layer through cash contributions.  Losses in excess of participation 
limits are the responsibility of the individual member from which the loss or claim originated. 

The Authority uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses under the liability 
program.  Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not 
discharge the primary liability of the Authority as direct insurer of the risks reinsured.  The 
Authority does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not 
be covered by reinsurers.  Premiums paid to reinsurers during the year ended June 30, 2019 were 
$2,480,081. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 1 – NATURE OF THE AUTHORITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(Continued) 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the reestimated amount of the losses assumed by the 
reinsurers and to be reimbursed to the Authority was $4,490,773.  
 
Losses in the property program in excess of the member’s retention of $25,000 for claims prior to 
July 1, 2018 and $100,000 for claims subsequent to that date are covered by commercial excess 
insurance.  Beginning with the program year that started on July 1, 2018, members participating 
in the property program have the option of participating in a pooled deductible buy-down.  Under 
the pooled deductible buy-down, each member sustaining a first loss in the program year is 
entitled to a $50,000 buy-down of the deductible for any loss exceeding $50,000 and a total loss 
in excess of $100,000.  The second loss by a member in the program year is entitled to a $25,000 
buy-down of the deductible for any loss exceeding $75,000 and a total loss in excess of 
$100,000.  The third and any additional loss by each member is subject to the $100,000 
deductible.  In the event that the balance in the loss buy-down deductible bank is exhausted 
during the program year, a one-time charge to the participating members will occur following the 
program year to offset any shortfall.  All remaining funds within the buy-down deductible bank 
will be available for use in the subsequent program year.  The balance of the buy-down 
deductible bank was $416,662 at June 30, 2019. 
 
For the pollution/environmental program, losses in excess of the member’s retention of $100,000 
are covered by commercial excess insurance. 
 
For the cyber-liability program, losses in excess of the member’s retention of $100,000 are covered 
by commercial excess insurance. 
 
For the auto physical damage program, losses in excess of each member’s retention of $10,000 are 
covered by commercial excess insurance. 
 
Excess Loss Reserve – The Authority established an excess loss reserve to support future 
program years of the liability program.  The goal of the Authority is to fund the reserve in an 
amount of $22.5 million, which is equivalent to five times the self-insured retention under the 
reinsurance program.  The projected funding level will be generated over a ten-year period from 
interest income and member premium allotments, if approved by the Board.  Once the reserve is 
funded, funding will be discontinued until losses reduce its balance.  Members retain an equity 
interest in the reserve, and the reserve will only become available for redistribution upon approval 
by the Board.  Total net equity in the Authority is not permitted to fall below $22.5 million.  The 
balance of the excess loss reserve, which is a component of net position restricted for the liability 
program, was $18,067,703 at June 30, 2019. 
 
Risk Sharing - The Authority’s Liability Program is a “risk sharing pool” which pools risks and 
funds and which shares in the cost of losses.  The Authority maintains members equity accounts for 
each pool member.  Losses and expenses are paid from these pools up to the limit of coverage 
subject to the self-insured retention. 
 
Each year, the Authority evaluates the pool’s financial risk position, defined as contributions less 
expenses, claims reserves and IBNRs.  If the events of the year result in a negative risk position, the 
members’ annual assessments may be increased in subsequent years. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 – NATURE OF THE AUTHORITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

D. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The
Authority has only two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred outflows related
to pensions and OPEB.  For further discussion see Notes 7 and 8 below.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Authority has only
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to pensions and
OPEB.  For further discussion see Notes 7 and 8 below.

E. Prepaid Insurance and Deposits

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as
prepaid items or deposits.

F. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The
Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which
inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.  

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the 
fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input 
that is significant to the entire measurement. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 1 – NATURE OF THE AUTHORITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(Continued) 
 
G. Use of Estimates 

 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools.  Individual Authority 
investments are evidenced by an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the 
institution issuing the security, called the book entry system.  The Authority’s investments are 
managed by an organization which contracts to provide this service.  The Authority carries its 
investments at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting principles, and it includes 
the effects of the adjustment in income. 
 
Cash and investments are used in preparing the statement of cash flows, because these assets are 
highly liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year. 
 
Funds available for investment are segregated into two categories in order to meet the Authority's 
investment goals. Those categories and their specific characteristics are set forth below: 

 
The Loss Payment Account - The Loss Payment Account is invested to maintain funds to 
pay claims as they come due and pay the operating expenses of the Authority. 
 
The Long-Term Growth Account - Recognizing that casualty liabilities are inflation 
sensitive, the Authority has established the Long-Term Growth Account to provide for 
long-term asset growth in order to offset potential inflation. 

 
  

23



CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

A. Authorized Investments

The Authority is authorized to invest in the instruments, in the table below, which also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code or the Authority’s investment policy where it
is more restrictive:

Permitted Investment/Deposit 

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

In One 
Issuer 

Minimum 
Credit 
Quality 

(if applicable) 
Maximum 
Maturity 

U.S. Treasury Obligations Unlimited Unlimited 5 & 10 years (1) 

Federal Agency and U.S. 
Government Sponsored Securities Unlimited Unlimited 5 & 10 years (1) 

Asset Backed Securities, Mortgage 
Backed, CMO Securities 20% Unlimited AA 5 years 

Bankers Acceptances 40% 5% A1/P1 180 days 

Commercial Paper 25% 5% A1/P1 270 days 

California Local Agency 
Investment Fund 20% 

$65 million 
per account 

Medium Term Notes 30% 5% A 5 years 

Mutual Funds and Money Market 
Mutual Funds 20% 10% AAA 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 30% 5% A 3 years 

California State or Local Agency 
Notes 30% (2) 5% (2) A 5 & 10 years (1) 
Notes issued by any State in the 
 U.S. 30% (2) 5% (2) A 5 & 10 years (1) 

Supranationals 30% 10% AA 5 years 

Federally Insured Time Deposits Unlimited 5% 3 years 

Time Certificates of Deposit Unlimited 5% 3 years 

(1) 5 years from the date of purchase for the Loss Payment Account and 10 years from the date of purchase for the
Long Term Growth Account

(2) Combined for California and other State Notes

The Authority also may invest in derivative investments, including stripped coupons and 
principal, fixed coupon and putable securities, step-up notes, variable or floating rate notes, asset-
backed securities, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMO’s), and Federal Agency mortgage 
pass-throughs.  No single derivative investment may be more than 5% of total investments, nor 
may total derivative investments be more than 20% of total investments.  Except for Federal 
Agency mortgage pass-throughs, derivatives must have a maturity of five years or less.  

24



CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

The following investments or investment practices are not permitted under the Authority’s 
investment policy: 

Purchase or sale of securities on margin 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 
Financial futures and financial options 
Guaranteed Small Business Administration (SBA) Notes 

B. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority’s investments to market
interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table, which shows the distribution of the
Authority’s investments by maturity or earliest call date:

Less than One to Six to 
One Year Five Years Ten Years Total

Money Market Mutual Fund $330,548 $330,548
Medium Term Notes 2,283,102 $7,707,784 9,990,886
Asset Backed Securities 771 1,023,682 1,024,453
Commercial Paper 134,471 134,471
Federal Agency Securities 638,127 3,771,823 $12,888,518 17,298,468
U.S. Treasury Notes 588,801 3,577,056 11,024,726 15,190,583
Supranationals 1,581,668 1,581,668
California Local Agency

Investment Fund 139,822 139,822

Total Investments $4,115,642 $17,662,013 $23,913,244 45,690,899

Cash in banks and on hand 1,047,123

$46,738,022Total Cash and Investments

The Authority is a participant in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of 
the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount 
provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share.  At June 30, 2019 the fair 
value approximated the Authority’s cost.  The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost 
basis.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, 
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and 
floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United 
States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.  At June 30, 2019, these investments matured 
in an average of 173 days. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

Money market mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand and at June 30, 2019 
matured in an average of 24 days. 

 
C. Credit Risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2019 for each 
investment type as provided by Standard & Poor’s: 
 

Investment Type AAAm/AAA AA+/AA/AA- A+/A/A- A-1 Total

Money Market Mutual Fund $330,548 $330,548

Medium Term Notes 599,850 $2,969,635 $6,421,401 9,990,886

Asset Backed Securities 411,767 411,767

Commercial Paper $134,471 134,471

Federal Agency Securities 17,298,468    17,298,468

Supranationals 654,639 654,639

     Totals $1,996,804 $20,268,103 $6,421,401 $134,471 28,820,779

    U.S. Treasury Notes 15,190,583

Not Rated:

    California Local Agency

        Investment Fund 139,822

Asset Backed Securities* 612,686

Supranationals* 927,029

Cash in banks and on hand 1,047,123

   Total Cash and Investments $46,738,022

Exempt from Credit Rating Disclosure:

 
*Standard and Poor’s investment ratings service did not rate these investments, however they 
had ratings of Aaa from Moody’s investment rating service and AAA from Fitch investment 
rating service. 
 

D. Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used 
to measure fair value of the assets.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the 
Authority as of June 30, 2019: 
 

Level 2 Total

Investments by Fair Value Level:

   Medium Term Notes $9,990,886 $9,990,886

   Asset Backed Securities 1,024,453 1,024,453

   Commercial Paper 134,471 134,471

   Federal Agency Securities 17,298,468 17,298,468

   U.S. Treasury Notes 15,190,583 15,190,583

   Supranationals 1,581,668 1,581,668

Subtotal $45,220,529 45,220,529

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

   Money Market Mutual Fund 330,548

Investments Exempt from Fair Value Hierarchy:

   California Local Agency Investment Fund 139,822

Total Investments $45,690,899

 
All investments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using various pricing 
techniques maintained by Interactive Data Pricing, including benchmark curves, sector groupings 
and matrix pricing. These prices are obtained by our investment manager. Fair value is defined as 
the quoted market value on the last trading day of the period.  
 

E.  Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

Investments in any one issuer (other than U. S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external 
investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total investments are as follows at June 30, 2019: 
  

Issuer Type Amount

Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities $10,115,573

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities 5,292,853
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

F. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  Under California
Government Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible securities, a bank must
deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair value of 105% to 150%
of the Authority’s cash on deposit. All of the Authority’s deposits are either insured by the
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held
in the trust department of the financial institutions in the Authority’s name.  The Authority has
waived collateral requirements for the portion of deposits covered by federal deposit insurance.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The
Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools.  Individual investments are
evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, or by an
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called
the book entry system. In order to maximize security, the Authority employs the Trust
Department of a bank as the custodian of all its investments, regardless of their form.

G. Investments Activity and Maturities

Changes in the Authority’s investments other than negotiable certificates of deposit, money market
mutual funds, commercial paper and California Local Agency Investment Funds during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Carrying value at June 30, 2018 $56,490,985

Purchases of securities, at cost 9,521,817

Sales and maturities of securities, net of realized gains or losses (20,926,744)

Carrying value at June 30, 2019 $45,086,058

H. Investments – OPEB Trust Fund

The table below identifies the range of types of money market and mutual funds that are
authorized by the OPEB Trust Fund’s moderate investment strategy:

Acceptable Range 

Asset Class of Asset Allocation

Equities 40-60%

Fixed Income 40-60%

Cash 0-20%

Investments of the OPEB Trust Fund at June 30, 2019 consisted of $483,802 invested in money 
market and mutual funds. 

28



CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

Rate of Return – For the year ended June 30, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on 
OPEB Trust Fund investments, net of OPEB plan investment expense, was 7.06%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted 
for the changing amounts actually invested. 

 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is 
not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date 
contributed.  All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users 
over the life of these assets.   
 
Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the 
total amount of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is reported on 
the Statement of Net Position as a reduction in the book value of capital assets.  Depreciation is 
provided using the straight line method, which means the cost of the asset is divided by its 
expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully 
depreciated.  
 
The Authority has assigned the useful lives and capitalization thresholds listed below to capital 
assets. 

Capitalization

Years Threshold

Land N/A All Acquisitions

Buildings 39 All Acquisitions

Building improvements 39
Renovations and improvements 

in excess of $50,000

Office furniture 5 $5,000

Office equipment 5 $5,000  
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

 
The Authority’s capital assets at June 30, 2019 consist of: 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $548,250 $548,250

Total capital assets not being depreciated 548,250 548,250

Capital assets being depreciated:

Building and improvements 2,821,324         2,821,324

Office furniture 151,284 ($3,047) 148,237

Office equipment 441,778 (47,425) 394,353

Total capital assets being depreciated 3,414,386 (50,472) 3,363,914

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building and improvements (358,788)           ($72,336) (431,124)

Office furniture (151,284) 3,047 (148,237)

Office equipment (387,273) (11,280) 47,425 (351,128)

Total accumulated depreciation (897,345) (83,616) 50,472 (930,489)

Net capital assets being depreciated 2,517,041 (83,616) 2,433,425

Net capital assets $3,065,291 ($83,616) $2,981,675
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 4 – RESERVE FOR LOSSES - LIABILITY PROGRAM UNPAID CLAIMS 
 
A. Actuarial Reserve 
 

The reserve for Liability Program unpaid claims is calculated based on undiscounted individual 
case reserves at June 30, 2019 and includes an estimated liability for reported claims of $21,751,286 
and an actuarial estimate of claims incurred but not reported of $30,077,787.  This reserve 
comprises the following years and deductibles pools:  

 

Claims for the Year 
Ended June 30

Pool Layer B- 
$500,000 - 
$1,000,000

Pool Layer C- 
$1,000,000 - 
$5,000,000 Total

2002/03 $857 $2,473 $3,330

2003/04 977 2,798 3,775

2004/05 1,115 3,039 4,154

2005/06 3,649 10,151 13,800

2006/07 7,553 20,841 28,394

2007/08 12,587 39,582 52,169

2008/09 20,128 60,509 80,637

2009/10 30,917 390,111 421,028

2010/11 40,663 116,419 157,082

2011/12 51,954 148,819 200,773

2012/13 81,943 199,709 281,652

2013/14 609,970 1,274,293 1,884,263

2014/15 884,048 2,793,293 3,677,341

2015/16 1,717,296 2,497,933 4,215,229

2016/17 4,000,658 7,029,123 11,029,781

2017/18 4,418,842 13,938,603 18,357,445

2018/19 3,150,606 8,267,614 11,418,220

Total $15,033,763 $36,795,310 $51,829,073
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 4 – RESERVE FOR LOSSES - LIABILITY PROGRAM UNPAID CLAIMS (Continued) 

B. Reconciliation of Reserves

Liability program reserves for losses changed as follows:

2019 2018

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, beginning of year $41,785,479 $41,372,796
Provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses attributable to 
insured events of:

Current year 11,418,220 10,473,171

Prior years 18,712,748 11,039,669

Total incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses 30,130,968 21,512,840

Less settlement of losses and loss adjustment expenses attributable to 
insured events of current and prior fiscal years:

Claims paid - current year 0 0

Claims paid - prior years (20,087,374) (21,100,157)

Total payments (20,087,374) (21,100,157)

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of year $51,829,073 $41,785,479

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses - Current $21,751,286 $12,490,179

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses - Noncurrent 30,077,787 29,295,300

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of year $51,829,073 $41,785,479
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NOTE 5 – REFUNDS TO MEMBERS 

Liability Program 

The Authority refunds excess contributions to members from time to time, based on the results of 
actuarial studies of each program year’s claims experience.  These refunds include cumulative 
earnings on program year contributions but may be reduced by amounts required to fund prior or 
subsequent year unfavorable claims experience.  Liability Program refunds by the Authority for 
the last ten fiscal years are presented below by program year and by fiscal year in which the 
refund was made.  Negative amounts represent re-allocation of refunds among years.  The 
Authority did not make a redistribution in fiscal years 2018 or 2019. 

Fiscal Year of Refund

Program

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

1986-87 $495,799 $157,519 $77,898 $1,022,362 ($250,001) $227,130 $17,642

1993-94 139,726 69,870 15,653 $126 (136) 314 $546 547 $972

1994-95 (117,171) 476,925 218,531 106,691 594,926 225,178 60,485 (28,129) 72,481 85,633

1995-96 913,414 672,289 315,505 113,866 18,185 13,639 (9,047) (700) 81,578 171,858

1996-97 517,149 488,433 563,253 58,256 124,410 92,561 31,469 17,333 89,463 267,576

1997-98 968,328 1,025,253 851,305 785,208 393,907 308,685 137,082 53,779 93,363 11,417

1998-99 866,764 1,084,676 974,838 1,103,895 473,571 461,557 337,596 183,584 142,723 397,795

1999-00 648,269 744,812 831,902 844,588 481,840 457,109 378,225 265,196 156,810 86,571

2000-01 421,617 547,720 567,781 693,687 435,069 451,396 355,386 302,896 209,015 137,667

2001-02 446,247 768,880 707,934 916,563 608,260 718,930 640,877 540,569 464,866 359,813

2002-03 500,887 510,616 774,420 676,137 771,310 799,656 772,109 626,237 605,884

2003-04 296,738 638,548 613,617 826,569 718,465 863,113 832,254 782,219

2004-05 (1,621,060) (1,211,354) (585,873) 111,548 (49,071) 188,842 209,653 249,864 298,571

2005-06 408,105 244,764 388,413 398,280 625,817 562,618 694,139

2006-07 (952,610) 212,970 208,070 273,901 310,500 383,470

2007-08 378,923 535,119 638,993 806,183

2008-09 189,336 285,788 388,165

2009-10 (468,060) (610,019) (1,555,076) 284,476

2010-11 (480,585) 348,478

2011-12 (492,580) (49,375)

2012-13 (796,405) (1,853,982) (1,704,230)

2013-14 (258,657) (1,637,724)

Total $5,300,142 $4,916,204 $4,720,600 $5,858,080 $4,845,850 $4,161,499 $3,534,251 $2,187,192 $2,655,511 $2,785,603

NOTE 6 – NET POSITION 

A. Net Position by Program

Net position by program at June 30, 2019 follows:

Liability $3,648,342
Property 441,378
Auto Physical Damage (29,764)

Total $4,059,956
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NOTE 6 – NET POSITION (Continued) 
 

B. Members Equity Balances 
 

Members’ equity in the Liability Program and capital assets, net of the balance of the Excess Loss 
Reserve discussed in Note 1C, is as follows: 
 

Pool Layer Total
Equity

Member B C D Balance

City of Alameda ($195,919) ($207,180) $96,649 ($306,450)

Municipal Pooling Authority

of Northern California

(formerly CCCMRMIA) (16,422) 17,035 613

City of Chico (134,189) (162,327) 54,657 (241,859)

Central San Joaquin Valley

Risk Management Authority (20,496) 18,640 (1,856)

City of Fairfield (242,145) (324,454) 80,477 (486,122)

City of Fremont (521,513) (783,227) 87,259 (1,217,481)

City of Livermore (278,406) (406,681) 124,717 (560,370)

Livermore Fire Protection District (11,702) (28,341) (1,407) (41,450)

City of Lodi (130,217) (153,891) 50,356 (233,752)

City of Manteca 224 (3,682) (3,458)

Northern California Cities Self  

Insurance Fund (1,267,232) (926,447) 413,788 (1,779,891)

City of Petaluma (139,833) (196,153) 47,131 (288,855)

City of Pomona 238,011 623,371 81,170 942,552

Public Entity Risk

Management Authority 1,832,478 133,937 1,966,415

City of Redding (330,696) (474,482) 92,066 (713,112)

Redwood Empire Municipal

Insurance Fund (507,544) (712,057) 158,604 (1,060,997)

City of Richmond (993,966) (1,655,246) 43,847 (2,605,365)

City of Roseville (604,862) (946,938) 141,764 (1,410,036)

City of San Leandro (365,603) (184,315) 78,496 (471,422)

City of San Rafael (189,621) (233,933) 58,276 (365,278)

City of Santa Rosa (597,617) (814,179) 150,405 (1,261,391)

Small Cities Organized

Risk Effort (81,323) (67,037) 44,601 (103,759)

City of Stockton (523,219) 500,417 (22,802)

City of Sunnyvale (521,206) (680,703) 137,634 (1,064,275)

City of Vacaville (281,485) (338,556) 85,903 (534,138)

City of Vallejo (260,664) (180,230) 94,087 (346,807)

Yolo County Public Agency Risk

Management Insurance Authority (1,132,442) (1,433,247) 357,674 (2,208,015)

Total member equity ($8,549,950) ($9,017,594) $3,148,183 ($14,419,361)
 

 
Pool Layer A was closed as of June 30, 2004, but was reactivated in fiscal year 2006 due to the 
reopening of a claim from program year 1986-87, and reclosed as of June 30, 2017.  
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the Authority’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Rate Plans. The Authority’s
Miscellaneous Rate Plans are part of the public agency cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan (PERF C), which is administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS).  PERF C consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (also
referred to as “risk pools”), which are comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety
rate plans, respectively.  Individual employers may sponsor more than one miscellaneous and
safety rate plan.  The employer participates in one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan regardless of the number of rate plans the employer sponsors.  The Authority
sponsors two miscellaneous rate plans. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statute and Authority resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website (www.calpers.ca.gov).

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time
employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10
years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957
Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments
for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

Tier 1 benefits apply to employees hired prior to January 1, 2013.  A second tier structure was
established to implement the provisions of the Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act of 2013
(PEPRA), Assembly Bill 340, and is applicable to employees new to CalPERS and hired after
December 31, 2012, and not subject to grandfathering into the previously existing Tier I Plan.
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:

Tier 1 PEPRA

Hire date
Prior to       

January 1, 2013
On or after      

January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life

Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%

Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.250%

Required employer contribution rates 12.212% 6.842%
Required UAL Contribution $51,920 $1,910

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a 
percentage of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar 
amount for contributions toward the unfunded liability (UAL).  The dollar amount is billed on a 
monthly basis.  The Authority’s required contribution for the unfunded liability was $53,830 in 
fiscal year 2019. 
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by 
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding 
contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by 
CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability.  The Authority is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.   

 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority contributed $134,072 to the Plan.  

 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan 
and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the Authority reported a net pension liability of $929,288 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan.  
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The Authority’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the 
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update 
procedures.  The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2018 was as 
follows: 

Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.02408%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.02466%

Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00058%

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized pension expense of $124,277. At 
June 30, 2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $134,072
Differences between actual and expected experience 35,655 ($12,134)
Changes in assumptions 105,942 (25,964)
Change in employer's proportion and differences 
   between the employer's contributions and the 
   employer's proportionate share of contributions 23,827 (13,395)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 4,594

Total $304,090 ($51,493)

$134,072 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2020.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended Annual 
June 30 Amortization

2020 $98,989
2021 56,934
2022 (29,040)
2023 (8,358)

Thereafter 0
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Actuarial Assumptions – For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018, the total pension 
liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2017 total pension liability.  The June 30, 
2018 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions for 
both benefit tiers: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS Membership
 Data for all Funds (1)

Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.00% until
Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing

Power applies, 2.50% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The
table includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries

Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the
CalPERS December 2017 experience study report available on CalPERS website.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 
2017 valuation were based on the results of a December 2017 actuarial experience study for the 
period 1997 to 2015.  Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS 
website. 

Change in assumption – For the measurement date of June 30, 2018, the inflation rate reduced 
from 2.75% to 2.50%. 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 
7.15%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate for the Plan assumed 
that contributions from all plan members in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) will 
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be 
made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members for all plans in the PERF.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability for the Plan. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  
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In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such 
cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required 
contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the 
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed 
administrative expenses.  

 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of 
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate 
and asset allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.  

 
New Real Return Real Return

Strategic Years 1 - 10 Years 11+
Asset Class (a) Allocation (b) (c)

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

(a)  In the CalPERS CAFR, Fixed Income is included in 
Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term 
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both
Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.

(b)  An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
(c)  An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 6.15%

Net Pension Liability $1,461,666

Current Discount Rate 7.15%

Net Pension Liability $929,288

1% Increase 8.15%

Net Pension Liability $489,818

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

In December 2016, CalPERS’ Board of Directors voted to lower the discount rate used in its 
actuarial valuations from 7.5% to 7.0% over three fiscal years, beginning in fiscal year 2017/18. 
The change in the discount rate affected the contribution rates for employers beginning in fiscal 
year 2018/19, and resulted in increases to employers’ normal costs and unfunded actuarial 
liabilities. 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

A. Description

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7 above, the Authority provides medical
benefits to substantially all retirees under the California Joint Powers Risk Management
Authority Retiree Health Savings Plan, a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan,
established by action of the Board of Directors.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the
Board of Directors passed a resolution to participate in the Public Agency Retirement Services
(PARS) Public Agencies Post-Retirement Health Care Plan Trust, an irrevocable agent multiple-
employer trust established to fund OPEB.  The Authority is the administrator of the Plan, and the
activities of the Plan are accounted for in the OPEB Trust Fund.  The Plan does not issue separate
financial statements.

Any amendments to the Plan or contribution requirements must be approved by the Board of
Directors.  Coverage is also provided for spouses of employees having a minimum of 10 years of
service at retirement.  As of June 30, 2019, there were two participants receiving these health care
benefits.
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The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows: 

 10 Years  15 Years
 of Service  of Service

Benefit Types Provided Medical only Medical only

Duration of Benefits Lifetime Lifetime

Required Service 10 years 15 years

Minimum Age 55 55

Dependent Coverage Spouse Spouse

Authority Contribution 75% 100%

Authority Contribution Cap per Month:

Retire prior to July 1, 2010 PEHMCA Minimum PEHMCA Minimum

Retire on or after July 1, 2010 Kaiser Bay Area Plan Kaiser Bay Area Plan

The Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEHMCA) minimum contribution for
2019 was $136.

B. Funding Policy

The Authority’s annual contributions to the Plan prior to July 1, 2014 were based on pay-as-you-
go financing.  Beginning in fiscal year 2015, the Authority’s annual contributions to the Plan are
a combination of pay-as-you-go financing and prefunding contributions to the PARS Trust.  The
Authority did not make any contributions to the trust during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
other than those related to the implicit subsidy of $4,227.
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C. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Authority’s OPEB Plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by Public
Agency Retirement Services (PARS) Trust.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized
when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at
fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $54,989. At June 30,
2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between actual and expected experience $334,325
Changes of assumptions ($110,896)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings (9,166)

on plan investments
Total $334,325 ($120,062)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized as part of OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Annual
Ended June 30 Amortization

2020 $33,745
2021 33,745
2022 33,745
2023 33,743
2024 36,036

Thereafter 43,249
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D. Net OPEB Liability

Plan Administration – The Authority is the Plan administrator. PARS administers the investment
trust for the Authority’s OPEB Plan.

Plan Membership – As of June 30, 2019, membership in the Plan consisted of the following;

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 2
Terminated plan members entitled to, but

not yet receiving benefits 1
Active plan members 6

Total 9

Investments – PARS offers different investment portfolios as part of the investment vehicle.  The 
Authority’s investment policy for the Plan and the related asset allocation policy, investments 
held as of June 30, 2019, and the rate of return are discussed in Note 2H above. 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability – The components of the change in the net OPEB liability of the 
Authority for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2018 $233,496 $463,371 ($229,875)

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service Cost 27,765 27,765
Interest on the total OPEB liability 11,634 11,634
Differences between expected and actual experience 388,248 388,248
Changes in economic/demographic gains or losses
Changes of assumptions (128,783) (128,783)
Contributions from the employer 4,227 (4,227)
Net investment income 32,275 (32,275)
Administrative expenses (2,663) 2,663
Benefit payments (13,408) (13,408)
Other

Net changes 285,456 20,431 265,025
Balance at June 30, 2019 (Measurement Date) $518,952 $483,802 $35,150

Increase (Decrease)
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2019 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level percent of payroll
Amortization Period 20 year fixed (closed) period
Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.00%

Investment Rate of Return
6.00% at June 30, 2019, 4.525% at June 30, 2018, net of OPEB plan investment 
expense, including inflation

Medical Trend Rates

Non-Medicare - 7.5% for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later years

Medicare - 6.5% for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate
of 4.0% in 2076 and later years

Mortality, Retirement, Disability, 
Termination

CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study

Mortality Improvement
Post-retirement mortality projected fully generational with 
  Scale MP-2018

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation.  The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the 
following table: 

Target Allocation Expected Real
Asset Class PARS - Moderate Rate of Return

Global Equity 48% 4.82%
Fixed Income 45% 1.47%
REITs 2% 3.76%
Cash 5% 0.06%

Assumed Long-Term Rate of Inflation 2.75%
Expected Long-Term Net Rate of Return, Rounded 6.00%
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Changes of assumptions include – 
 

 Discount rate was updated based on newer capital market assumptions 
 Salary increase was updated 
 Medical trend was updated based on consultation with Axene Health Partners' and 

Getzen Model for short-term trends, respectively 
 Participation at retirement assumption was updated 
 Demographic assumptions were updated to CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study 
 Mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale MP-2018 

 
Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 
was 6.00%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
Authority contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution 
rates.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the 
long term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents 
the net OPEB asset of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s net OPEB asset would be if 
it were calculated using the discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current discount rate: 
 

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)
Discount Rate -1% Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%

(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)
$122,105 $35,150 ($34,912)

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The following 
presents the net OPEB asset of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s net OPEB asset 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower 
or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)
1% Decrease Current Healthcare 1% Increase

(See Assumptions Above) Cost Trend Rates (See Assumptions Above)
($43,301) $35,150 $135,095

 
NOTE 9 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 

 
Authority employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority sponsored 
Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and 
administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation.  Under this plan, participants are not taxed on the 
deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made only at 
termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as defined by the Plan.  
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

NOTE 9 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) 

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for 
the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.  Since the assets held under these 
plans are not the Authority’s property and are not subject to Authority control, they have been 
excluded from these financial statements. 

NOTE 10 – OPERATING LEASE 

The Authority leases a portion of its building to a tenant and total gross rental income received 
during fiscal year 2019 was $166,962, which included rent, common area maintenance charges 
and utilities charges. 

Minimum future rentals to be received under the lease as of June 30 are: 

Fiscal Year

Ending Amount

2020 $176,380

2021 181,688

2022 187,148

2023 192,710

2024 198,508
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:  Claims Development Information 

The Table on page 48 compares the Authority’s member contributions and investment income with the 
related claims costs (net of settlement reimbursements) and other expenses incurred by the Authority each 
year.  The respective lines in the Table include the following: 

(1) This line shows the total of each fiscal year’s contributions from members, investment income
earned, contribution revenue paid to reinsurers, and net earned contributions and investment
income.

(2) This line shows the cost of providing coverage for members and other operating costs of the
Authority during the fiscal year, including overhead and claims administration expenses.

(3) This line shows the Authority’s incurred claims costs (including amounts already paid and
estimated future payments) as originally estimated at the end of the first year the claim occurred
(program year).

(4) This line shows the net cumulative amounts paid as of the end of each successive year for each
program year.

(5) This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the end of the
current year for each program year.

(6) This line shows how the estimate of each program year’s incurred claims increased or decreased as
of the end of each successive year.  This annual re-estimation results from new information received
on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on known claims, as well as emergence of
new claims not previously known.

(7) This line compares the latest re-estimated incurred claims amount (line 6) with the amount
originally established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims cost is greater or less
than originally thought.  As data for individual program years mature, the correlation between
original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of incurred
claims currently recognized in less mature program years.
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
LIABILITY PROGRAM CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

The table below compares the Liability Program's member contributions and investment income with
related losses and other program expenses.

Claim Year

2010 2011* 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(1) Required contribution
and investment revenue:

Earned
Member  contributions $9,859,099 $8,670,116 $8,866,699 $7,471,894 $8,749,984 $8,671,002 $8,991,896 $10,247,643 $11,725,710 $11,715,833
Investment income 8,779,576 3,804,251 9,182,592 (993,828) 2,404,628 1,839,793 3,981,263 (668,265) (418,101) 4,177,564

Paid for reinsurance (2,321,608) (2,297,754) (1,970,485) (2,096,468) (2,082,657) (1,846,331) (2,309,321) (2,162,425) (2,525,557) (2,480,081)

Net Earned $16,317,067 $10,176,613 $16,078,806 $4,381,598 $9,071,955 $8,664,464 $10,663,838 $7,416,953 $8,782,052 $13,413,316

(2) Unallocated expenses $788,131 $914,523 $833,172 $835,493 $831,580 $773,957 $847,201 $917,443 $894,548 $847,610

(3) Estimated self insured incurred
claims and expenses, end of
program year 9,154,795 9,341,764 9,291,739 9,241,589 9,425,385 11,640,771 11,967,663 10,080,520 10,473,171 11,418,220

(4) Net paid (cumulative) as of:
End of program year 0 231 0 0 0 54,686 17,286 0 0 0
One year later 3,217 2,418 1,850,331 9,727 1,592,059 1,311,518 3,177,649 292,131 600,061
Two years later 7,680 68,729 1,810,032 2,117,556 2,593,974 1,374,824 4,934,308 5,642,174
Three years later 24,288 68,927 2,312,431 7,898,296 11,877,818 7,304,330 10,255,733
Four years later 506,880 75,143 2,312,888 9,253,399 16,325,268 8,008,171
Five years later 1,846,961 159,203 2,312,916 15,515,685 17,492,903
Six years later 3,366,544 159,203 3,246,603 21,587,295
Seven years later 2,785,626 159,203 3,030,945
Eight years later 2,895,306 159,203
Nine years later 2,922,490

(5) Reestimated reinsured claims 0 0 0 0 1,947,973 3,093,329 3,503,535 0 0 0
and expenses

(6) Reestimated net incurred claims
and expenses:
End of program year 9,154,795 9,341,764 9,291,739 9,241,589 9,425,385 11,640,771 11,967,663 10,080,520 10,473,171 11,418,220
One year later 10,519,598 7,587,476 11,627,889 13,929,890 10,248,454 12,943,731 13,957,838 11,446,807 18,957,505
Two years later 10,631,491 5,782,255 7,494,284 15,652,325 16,342,809 11,806,260 11,666,833 16,671,955
Three years later 7,134,441 3,507,828 5,569,489 13,492,445 17,138,716 12,366,151 14,470,960
Four years later 9,769,772 1,566,263 3,922,777 11,265,336 18,359,978 11,685,513
Five years later 7,352,928 1,110,522 2,890,392 18,983,924 19,377,166
Six years later 5,862,265 398,025 3,502,059 21,858,700
Seven years later 4,402,106 354,553 3,231,717
Eight years later 5,027,573 316,285
Nine years later 3,343,518

(7) Increase (decrease) in estimated net
incurred claims and expenses from
end of program year (5,811,277) (9,025,479) (6,060,022) 12,617,111 9,951,781 44,742 2,503,297 6,591,435 8,484,334 0

* Balances were restated in fiscal year 2012.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – 
 LAST 10 YEARS* 

SCHEDULE OF PLAN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
AND RELATED RATIOS AS OF THE MEASUREMENT DATE 

Measurement Date 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 0.01937% 0.02293% 0.02331% 0.02408% 0.02466%

Plan's Proportion Share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) $478,685 $629,081 $809,773 $949,102 $929,288

Plan's Covered Payroll $468,889 $476,372 $517,243 $587,238 $611,486

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its
Covered Payroll 102.09% 132.06% 156.56% 161.62% 151.97%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary
Net Position as a Percentage of the Plan's 
Total Pension Liability 79.82% 78.40% 74.06% 73.31% 75.26%

Change in assumption - In 2017, the accounting discount rate was decreased from 7.65% to 7.15%.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN –  
LAST 10 YEARS* 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the Year ended June 30 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actuarially determined contributions $76,270 $90,313 $97,766 $101,342 $134,072
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contributions (76,270) (90,313) (97,766) (101,342) (134,072)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Covered payroll $476,372 $517,243 $587,238 $611,486 $712,622

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 16.01% 17.46% 16.65% 16.57% 18.81%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLAN 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET) 
AND RELATED RATIOS 

Last 10 Fiscal Years (1) 

For the Measurement Period Ended June 30 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $65,666 $65,666 $27,765
Interest 9,773 27,886 11,634
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience 388,248
Changes in economic/demographic gains or losses (410,649)
Changes of assumptions (128,141) (128,783)
Benefit payments (13,408)
Net change in Total OPEB Liability (52,702) (317,097) 285,456
Total OPEB Liability at beginning of year 603,295 550,593 233,496
   Total OPEB Liability at end of year $550,593 $233,496 $518,952

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $50,000 $50,000 $4,227
Contributions - member
Net investment income 31,150 25,985 32,275
Benefit payments (13,408)
Administrative expenses (2,663)
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 81,150 75,985 20,431
Plan Fiduciary Net Position at beginning of year 306,236 387,386 463,371
   Plan Fiduciary Net Position at end of year $387,386 $463,371 $483,802

Authority's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) at end of year $163,207 ($229,875) $35,150

Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as percentage of Total OPEB Liability 70.36% 198.45% 93.23%

Covered-employee payroll $587,238 $611,486 $757,683

Net OPEB Liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll 27.79% -37.59% 4.64%

Notes:
(1) Fiscal year 2017 was the first year of implementation for GASB 74 and
GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Last 10 Fiscal Years (1) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 2018 2019

Actuarially Determined Contributions $75,439 $13,438 $13,780

Employer Contributions 50,000 50,000 4,227

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $25,439 ($36,562) $9,553

Covered-Employee Payroll $587,238 $611,486 $757,683

Contributions as percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 8.51% 8.18% 0.56%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Valuation date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019

Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age Entry age

Amortization method 20-year closed level dollar 20-year closed level dollar 20-year closed level dollar

Remaining amortization period 20 19 18

Asset valuation method Market value of assets Market value of assets Market value of assets

Inflation 3.25% 3.25% 2.75%

Projected salary increases 3.00% 2.54% 3.00%

Discount rate, net of investment expenses 4.525% 4.525% 6.00%

Retirement age 64 64 64

Mortality

RP2000 Mortality Table
for Males and Females 
Projected 18 years

RP2000 Mortality Table 
for Males and Females 
Projected 18 years

CalPERS 1997-2015 
Experience Study

(1) Fiscal year 2017 was the first year of implementation of GASB 74 and

GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLAN 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS 

Last 10 Fiscal Years (1) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2017 2018 2019

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 7.01% 6.50% 7.06%

Notes:

(1) Fiscal year 2017 was the first year of implementation.
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY PROGRAM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Auto Physical
Liability Property Damage
Program Program Program Total 

OPERATING REVENUES

Member contributions $11,715,833 $3,818,577 $697,287 $16,231,697

Fees earned 24,050 10,000 34,050

Total Operating Revenues 11,715,833 3,842,627 707,287 16,265,747

OPERATING EXPENSES

Claims:

Current year loss provision 11,418,220 11,418,220

Prior year loss reserve adjustment 18,712,748 18,712,748

Settlements paid 5,315,751 445,554 5,761,305

Settlement reimbursement (5,315,751) (445,554) (5,761,305)

Insurance premiums and claims adjustment fees 2,480,081 3,353,518 709,981 6,543,580

Personnel expenses 1,116,893 1,116,893

Maintenance and operation 847,610 46,550 10,000 904,160

Total Operating Expenses 34,575,552 3,400,068 719,981 38,695,601

NET OPERATING INCOME (22,859,719) 442,559 (12,694) (22,429,854)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)

Interest and dividends 1,444,661 8,386 1,453,047

Net (decrease) in investment fair value 2,732,903 2,732,903

Rent and other income 251,295 251,295

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 4,428,859 8,386 4,437,245

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (18,430,860) 450,945 (12,694) (17,992,609)

Net Position (Deficit) 22,079,202 (9,567) (17,070) 22,052,565

Net Position (Deficit), End of Year $3,648,342 $441,378 ($29,764) $4,059,956
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the Authority’s overall financial health.  In contrast to the financial 
section, the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial 
performance and wellbeing have changed over time: 

1. Net Position by Component
2. Changes in Net Position

Revenues and Expenses 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the components of the Authority’s most 
significant revenue source, member contributions, as well as the Authority’s expenses: 

1. Revenues by Program
2. Expenses by Program

Claims Information 
This schedule present information to help the reader assess the Authority’s various coverage programs: 

1. Economic Statistics (Programs)

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the Authority’s financial activities take place: 

1. Demographic Statistics by Employer
2. Demographic and Economic Statistics

Other Information  
These schedules contain to help the reader understand how the information in the Authority’s financial report 
relates to the services the Authority provides and the activities it performs: 

1. Liability Program Cumulative Claims Paid
2. Liability Program Reestimated Incurred Claims and Expenses
3. Historical Trends of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Sources 
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Basic Financial Statements or 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Assets

Current assets 96,932,874$   93,705,461$    94,472,095$   89,128,863$   90,347,951$  

Capital Assets 3,113,844        2,968,641        2,809,231        882,011           3,454,388       

Other Non‐current Assets ‐ ‐  ‐ ‐ ‐

TOTAL ASSETS 100,046,718   96,674,102      97,281,326     90,010,874     93,802,339    

Liabilities

Current liabilities 1,108,265        1,510,507        1,404,476        1,913,551        1,414,799       

Noncurrent liabilities 49,984,773     49,652,746      45,019,005     37,909,305     46,322,185    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 51,093,038     51,163,253      46,423,481     39,822,856     47,736,984    

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 3,113,844        2,968,641        2,809,231        882,011           3,454,388       

Restricted 45,839,836     42,605,971      48,112,377     49,309,626     42,610,967    

Unrestricted ‐ (63,763)             (63,763)            (3,619)              ‐

TOTAL NET POSITION 48,953,680$   45,510,849$    50,857,845$   50,188,018$   46,065,355$  

*

* 

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

related to pensions

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

related to pensions

The Authority implemented the provision of GASB Statement No. 63 in fiscal year 2013, which replaced

the term "Net Assets" with "Net Position"

The Authority implemented the provision of GASB Statement No. 68 in fiscal year 2015, which added

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources related to pensions.
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2015* 2016 2017 2018 2019

89,236,475$    86,305,071$    75,868,073$    61,587,295$    55,082,746$   

3,310,749        3,199,197        3,087,877        3,065,291        2,981,675       

‐  ‐  ‐  229,875           ‐ 

92,547,224      89,504,268      78,955,950      64,882,461      58,064,421     

76,270              180,996           248,530           324,600           638,415          

17,196,387      26,433,972      14,696,827      12,848,110      23,429,100     

32,216,425      25,398,212      28,295,703      30,244,402      31,042,225     

49,412,812      51,832,184      42,992,530      43,092,512      54,471,325     

171,508           82,186              82,819              61,984              171,555          

3,310,749        3,199,197        3,087,877        3,065,291        2,981,675       

39,744,157      34,585,460      33,067,816      19,013,911      1,108,045       

(15,732)            (13,763)            (26,562)            (26,637)            (29,764)           

43,039,174$    37,770,894$    36,129,131$    22,052,565$    4,059,956$     
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2010 2011 2012 2013

Operating Revenues

Member contributions 12,989,624$    11,505,623$   11,501,063$   10,398,648$  

Fees earned 12,000              11,000             11,000             11,000            

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 13,001,624      11,516,623     11,512,063     10,409,648    

Operating Expenses

Current year loss provision 9,154,795        9,341,764        9,291,739        9,241,589       

Prior year loss reserve adjustment (971,659)          720,535           (8,977,314)      (9,326,560)     

Settlements paid 315,553            1,049,385        288,604           147,477          

Settlement reimbursement (315,553)          (1,049,349)      (288,604)          (147,477)         

TOTAL CLAIMS EXPENSE 8,183,136        10,062,335     314,425           (84,971)           

Insurance premiums and claims adj fees 5,437,271        5,209,377        4,604,843        4,961,677       

General and administrative 1,528,107        1,607,644        1,623,379        1,605,879       

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 15,148,514      16,879,356     6,542,647        6,482,585       

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (2,146,890)       (5,362,733)      4,969,416        3,927,063       

SPECIAL ITEM

Gain from sale of capital assets 557,837          

Settlement

NON‐OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Net investment income 8,786,407        3,804,251        9,182,592        (993,828)         

Rent and other income 437                   ‐                        14,569             600                  

Refunds to members (4,966,179)       (5,858,080)      (4,845,850)      (4,161,499)     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,673,775$      (7,416,562)$    9,320,727$     (669,827)$      

* The Authority implemented the provision of GASB Statement No. 63 in fiscal year 2013, which replaced 

the term "Net Assets" with "Net Position"
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

12,018,284$         11,966,453$         11,845,270$         13,243,708$         15,381,848$         16,231,697$        

11,000                   11,000                   11,000                   11,000                   35,002                   34,050                  

12,029,284            11,977,453            11,856,270            13,254,708            15,416,850            16,265,747           

9,425,385              11,640,771            11,967,663            10,080,520            10,473,171            11,418,220           

(1,077,679)            (4,206,980)            (360,948)                (5,532,481)            11,039,669            18,712,748           

1,325,806              10,335,380            758,106                 425,897                 8,951,297              5,761,305             

(1,325,806)            (10,335,380)          (758,106)                (425,897)                (8,951,297)            (5,761,305)           

8,347,706              7,433,791              11,606,715            4,548,039              21,512,840            30,130,968           

5,247,232              5,133,726              5,213,185              5,176,156              5,990,249              6,543,580             

1,580,766              1,497,941              1,630,402              1,983,766              1,779,743              2,021,053             

15,175,704            14,065,458            18,450,302            11,707,961            29,282,832            38,695,601           

(3,146,420)            (2,088,005)            (6,594,032)            1,546,747              (13,865,982)          (22,429,854)         

2,404,628              1,635,282              3,713,709              (668,265)                (418,101)                4,185,950             

153,380                 204,511                 267,554                 265,358                 272,147                 251,295                

(3,534,251)            (2,187,192)            (2,655,511)            (2,785,603)            ‐                              ‐                             

(4,122,663)$          (2,435,404)$          (5,268,280)$          (1,641,763)$          (14,011,936)$        (17,992,609)$       
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Revenues by Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Liability

Workers'

Compensation Property APD Totals

2009‐10 18,639,112$          6,831$                    2,845,600$            296,925$                21,788,468$         

85.55% 0.03% 13.06% 1.36% 100.00%

2010‐11 12,474,367$          ‐$                             2,571,259$            275,248$                15,320,874$         

81.42% 0.00% 16.78% 1.80% 100.00%

2011‐12 18,063,860$          ‐$                             2,294,852$            350,512$                20,709,224$         

87.23% 0.00% 11.08% 1.69% 100.00%

2012‐13 7,036,503$            ‐$                             2,517,559$            420,195$                9,974,257$           

70.55% 0.00% 25.24% 4.21% 100.00%

2013‐14 11,307,992$          ‐$                             2,800,884$            478,416$                14,587,292$         

77.52% 0.00% 19.20% 3.28% 100.00%

2014‐15 10,510,795$          ‐$                             2,822,012$            484,439$                13,817,246$         

76.07% 0.00% 20.42% 3.51% 100.00%

2015‐16 12,973,159$          ‐$                             2,187,383$            676,991$                15,837,533$         

81.91% 0.00% 13.81% 4.27% 100.00%

2016‐17 9,844,736$            ‐$                             2,378,865$            628,200$                12,851,801$         

76.60% 0.00% 18.51% 4.89% 100.00%

2017‐18 11,725,710$          ‐$                             3,075,387$            615,753$                15,416,850$         

76.06% 0.00% 19.95% 3.99% 100.00%

2018‐19 11,715,833$          ‐$                             3,842,627$            707,287$                16,265,747$         

72.03% 0.00% 23.62% 4.35% 100.00%
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS

RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Expenses by Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Liability

Workers' 

Compensation Property

Auto Physical

Damage Totals

2009‐10 16,799,259$          187,909$                2,830,600$            296,925$                20,114,693$         

83.52% 0.93% 14.07% 1.48% 100.00%

2010‐11 19,814,777$          ‐$                             2,640,604$            282,055$                22,737,436$         

87.15% 0.00% 11.61% 1.24% 100.00%

2011‐12 8,743,133$            ‐$                             2,294,852$            350,512$                11,388,497$         

76.77% 0.00% 20.15% 3.08% 100.00%

2012‐13 7,767,875$            ‐$                             2,464,222$            411,987$                10,644,084$         

72.98% 0.00% 23.15% 3.87% 100.00%

2013‐14 15,534,380$          ‐$                             2,703,965$            471,610$                18,709,955$         

83.03% 0.00% 14.45% 2.52% 100.00%

2014‐15 12,954,263$          ‐$                             2,790,009$            508,378$                16,252,650$         

79.71% 0.00% 17.17% 3.13% 100.00%

2015‐16 18,190,949$          ‐$                             2,239,842$            675,022$                21,105,813$         

86.19% 0.00% 10.61% 3.20% 100.00%

2016‐17 11,468,833$          ‐$                             2,383,732$            640,999$                14,493,564$         

79.13% 0.00% 16.45% 4.42% 100.00%

2017‐18 25,669,594$          ‐$                             3,152,931$            606,261$                29,428,786$         

87.23% 0.00% 10.71% 2.06% 100.00%

2018‐19 34,575,552$          ‐$                             3,400,068$            719,981$                38,695,601$         

89.35% 0.00% 8.79% 1.86% 100.00%
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Economic Statistics
(000's Omitted)

Fiscal Year 2010 2011 2012 2013

Liability
Total Number of Claims (Cumulative) 1,906                1,974                2,047                2,121               

Closed Claims (Cumulative) 1,781                1,845                1,893                1,972               

Open Claims (Cumulative) 125                   129                   154                   149                  

Covered Payroll (Cumulative) 7,576,015$      9,154,513$      10,671,257$    12,176,106$   

Workers' Compensations
Total Number of Claims (Cumulative)

Closed Claims (Cumulative)

Open Claims (Cumulative)

Covered Payroll (Cumulative)

Property
Total Number of Claims (Cumulative) 18                     20                     24                     26                    

Closed Claims (Cumulative) 18                     20                     24                     26                    

Open Claims (Cumulative) ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        

Covered TIV (Cumulative) 28,165,297$    34,579,721$    41,029,069$    47,820,899$   

Auto Physical Damage
Total Number of Claims (Cumulative) 25                     29                     34                     41                    

Closed Claims (Cumulative) 25                     29                     34                     41                    

Open Claims (Cumulative) ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        

Covered TIV (Cumulative) 617,072$         751,795$         933,862$         1,157,128$     

Ratio of Premium to Payroll/TIV
Liability Program 0.599% 0.549% 0.585% 0.497%

Worker's Compensation Program

Property Program 0.040% 0.040% 0.036% 0.037%

Auto Physical Damage Program 0.221% 0.204% 0.193% 0.188%
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Economic Statistics
(000's Omitted)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2,228                2,296                2,379                2,463                2,547                2,645               

2,044                2,090                2,183                2,276                2,378                2,459               

184                   206                   196                   187                   169                   186                  

13,631,759$    15,096,238$    16,621,829$    18,221,646$    19,898,529$    21,602,209$   

32                     37                     44                     47                     55                     60                    

32                     37                     44                     47                     50                     54                    

‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         5                        6                       

54,851,694$    61,961,468$    69,107,905$    77,550,011$    87,370,969$    96,991,085$   

46                     58                     67                     75                     90                     105                  

46                     58                     65                     75                     90                     105                  

‐                         ‐                         2                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        

1,410,893$      1,666,961$      1,975,915$      2,268,351$      2,574,636$      2,896,389$     

0.601% 0.592% 0.704% 0.711% 0.780% 0.686%

0.040% 0.040% 0.024% 0.025% 0.032% 0.039%

0.189% 0.189% 0.213% 0.215% 0.201% 0.220%
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Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employees

Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory 7,300                 1 15.41% N/A N/A N/A

Sandia National Laboratory 1,550                 2 3.27% N/A N/A N/A

Livermore Valley Joint USD 1,450                 3 3.06% N/A N/A N/A

Gillig 980                     4 2.07% N/A N/A N/A

Kaiser Permanente 920                     5 1.94% N/A N/A N/A

Lam Research 730                     6 1.54% N/A N/A N/A

Form Factor 700                     7 1.48% N/A N/A N/A

US Foods 699                     8 1.48% N/A N/A N/A

Comcast 589                     9 1.24% N/A N/A N/A

Wente 550                     10 1.16% N/A N/A N/A

32.65%

*Not available

Source: City of Livermore Office of Innovation and Economic Development

              Bureau of Labor & Statistics

 Note: Employment as used above represents employees located within the City of Livermore, which is the office locaƟon of the Authority.

2019 2010
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RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Median Income (4)

Year

 City of 

Livermore

Population (1) 

 Alameda County

 Per Capita

Personal Income 

(2) 

Alameda County

 Total Personal

Income

Unemployment

Rate 

(3) US

Alameda

County Livermore

% of

US

2010 80,968  Est.  $47,695 $3,861,768,760 7.6% $50,046 $67,169 $95,941 191.7%

2011 81,898  Est.  50,817  4,161,810,666        6.1% 50,502             67,558             97,047             192.2%

2012 83,184  Est.  52,811  4,393,030,224        6.2% 51,371             70,500             100,222          195.1%

2013 84,486  Est.  54,774  4,627,636,164        4.8% 52,250             72,399             91,790             175.7%

2014 85,819  Est.  58,175  4,992,520,325        4.1% 53,657             77,214             87,815             163.7%

2015 87,090  Est.  62,926  5,480,225,340        3.1% 55,775             81,717             110,212          197.6%

2016 88,974  Est.  65,884  5,861,963,016        3.1% 57,617             89,979             111,625          193.7%

2017 90,454              Est.  65,884  (2) N/A (2) 2.9% 60,336             96,296             118,406          196.2%

2018 91,411              Est.  65,884  (2) N/A (2) 2.8% N/A (4) N/A (4) N/A (4)

2019 91,039              Est.  71,282  (2) N/A (2) 2.6% N/A (4) N/A (4) N/A (4)

Note:

1. Data Source: State of California, Department of Finance

2. Data Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economic Accounts, Local Area Personal Income.

County income estimates are not currently available after 2016.

3. Data Source: State of California, Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information ‐ Unemployment Rates

4. Median Household Income. Data Source: American FactFinder, U.S. Census Bureau.  Data not currently available after 2018.

 Note: Employment as used above represents employees located within the City of Livermore, which is the office locaƟon of the Authority.
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
LIABILITY PROGRAM

CUMULATIVE CLAIMS PAID
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

304090

929288

Claim Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Paid (cumulative) as of:

End of program year $0 $231 $0 $0 $0 $54,686 $17,286 $0 $0 $0

One year later 3,217 2,418 1,850,331 9,727 1,592,059 1,311,518 3,177,649 292,131 600,061

Two years later 7,680 68,729 1,810,032 2,117,556 2,593,974 1,374,824 4,934,308 5,642,174

Three years later 24,288 68,927 2,312,431 7,898,296 11,877,818 7,304,330 10,255,733

Four years later 506,880 75,143 2,312,888 9,253,399 16,325,268 8,008,171

Five years later 1,846,961 159,203 2,312,916 15,515,685 17,492,903

Six years later 3,366,544 159,203 3,246,603 21,587,295

Seven years later 2,785,626 159,203 3,030,945

Eight years later 2,895,306 159,203

Nine years later 2,922,490
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
LIABILITY PROGRAM

REESTIMATED INCURRED CLAIMS AND EXPENSES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

929288

Claim Year

2010 2011* 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Reestimated incurred

claims and expenses:

End of program year $9,154,795 $9,341,764 $9,291,739 $9,241,589 $9,425,385 $11,640,771 $11,967,663 $10,080,520 $10,473,171 $11,418,220

One year later 10,519,598 7,587,476 11,627,889 13,929,890 10,248,454 12,943,731 13,957,838 11,446,807 18,957,505

Two years later 10,631,491 5,782,255 7,494,284 15,652,325 16,342,809 11,806,260 11,666,833 16,671,955

Three years later 7,134,441 3,507,828 5,569,489 13,492,445 17,138,716 12,366,151 14,470,960

Four years later 9,769,772 1,566,263 3,922,777 11,265,336 18,359,978 11,685,513

Five years later 7,352,928 1,110,522 2,890,392 18,983,924 19,377,166

Six years later 5,862,265 398,025 3,502,059 21,858,700

Seven years later 4,402,106 354,553 3,231,717

Eight years later 5,027,573 316,285

Nine years later 3,343,518

* Balances were restated in fiscal year 2012
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
HISTORICAL TRENDS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

g

General and Investment Net
Fiscal Net Claims Administrative Income Change in Position End
Year Contributions Expenses Expenses (Loss) Net Position of Year

2010 $12,867,498 $2,645,825 $1,479,116 $8,277,018 $11,499,270 $47,279,905
2011* 12,989,624 8,183,136 1,528,107 8,786,407 6,639,154 48,953,680
2012 11,505,623 10,062,299 1,607,644 3,804,251 (1,558,482) 41,537,118
2013** 11,501,063 314,425 1,623,379 9,182,592 14,166,577 50,857,845
2014 10,398,648 (84,971) 1,605,879 (993,828) (669,827) 50,188,018
2015 12,018,284 8,347,706 1,580,766 2,404,628 (4,122,663) 46,065,355
2016 11,966,453 7,433,791 1,497,941 1,635,282 (2,435,404) 43,039,174
2017 11,845,270 11,606,715 1,630,402 3,713,709 (5,268,280) 37,770,894
2018 13,243,708 4,548,039 1,983,766 (668,265) (1,641,763) 36,129,131
2019 16,231,697 30,130,968 2,021,053 4,185,950 (17,992,609) 4,059,956

* Balances were restated in fiscal year 2012.
** The Authority implemented the provisions of GASB Statement 63 in fiscal year 2013,

which replaced the term “net assets” with the term “net position.”
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MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

Board of Directors 
California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 
Livermore, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the California Joint Powers Risk 
Management Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.  In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of 
management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by 
such controls.  However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  We consider the deficiencies in internal control included on the Schedule of Significant 
Deficiencies to be significant deficiencies. 

Included in the Schedule of Other Matters are recommendations not meeting the above definitions that we 
believe are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency.  

Management’s written responses included in this report have not been subjected to the audit procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, 
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties.  

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 16, 2019 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

2019-01 Timely Preparation and Review of Journal Entries 

As we’d noted in prior year comment 2018-01, journal entries are an important transaction cycle that 
affects all aspects of accounting and financial reporting. Prudent internal control concepts dictate that no 
single employee should process a transaction without the involvement of another employee.  Preparation 
and review of journal entries should also be completed in a timely manner.  As journal entry batches are 
prepared on a monthly basis, the review and approval should be completed within 30 days after month-
end. 

We selected two monthly journal entry packets for timely preparation and review, and noted the journal 
entry packet for September 2018 was not reviewed until April 2019 and the journal entry packet for 
January 2019 was not prepared until April 2019 and it was reviewed in May 2019. 

Without a timely preparation and review, there is an increased risk of error, improper accounting 
treatment, or misstated interim financial statements.  The Authority should ensure journal entries are 
prepared and reviewed timely, generally within 30 days after month-end. 

Current Status: 
The timely journal entry preparation and review continues to be a process that needs 
improvement. These will be done on a more timely basis. 

2019-02 Timely Removal of Former Employees from Bank and Investment Signature Cards 

Signature cards for the bank and investment accounts should be updated immediately whenever there is a 
change in authorized signers. 

Although the Authority did add the new General Manager to the bank signature cards and updated the 
authorized signers for the investment accounts after the retirement of the former General Manager, the 
former General Manager was not removed from the bank signature card until September 2019. 

Keeping inactive employees as authorized signers on the Authority’s bank and investment accounts could 
potentially lead to unauthorized transactions. 

We understand the former General Manager was not removed due to staff oversight. 

In the future, a step should be added to the employee departure checklist to ensure that outside parties 
(such as banks and investment advisors) are informed that the departed employee no longer represents the 
Authority. 

Management’s Response: 
The removal of the previous general manager from the signature card was an oversight.  A 
checklist will be developed for departing employees to confirm all applicable outside parties are 
notified and any Authority assets are returned. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 

2019-03 Liability Program Net Position and Reserve Policy 

The Liability Program experienced an operating loss in fiscal year 2019 of $22.9 million that resulted in net 
position of only $667 thousand as of June 30, 2019, excluding the net investment in capital assets.  Although 
the Authority had previously established the Excess Loss Reserve in the Program, the balance of the reserve 
was $18.1 million at June 30, 2019, and the Program activity nearly equaled that reserve balance.  Without the 
Excess Loss Reserve, member equity in the Program is a deficit of $17.4 million.  Should this level of claims 
activity repeat in the next year, the Program will not have sufficient resources to pay claims or support 
administrative costs. 

During fiscal year 2019, member premiums declined $9.8 thousand, but the reserve for losses and claims 
increased $10 million, after the Authority paid claims in excess of member self-insured retentions of $20.1 
million, and when combined with other activity of the Program, the Program experienced a net loss of $18.4 
million.  The Authority also paid claims that are to be funded by reinsurers of $4.5 million that had not yet 
been collected from the reinsurers, which put a strain on the Authority’s cash flow. 

Although we understand that the Authority collected $3.5 million of amounts due from reinsurers in early 
fiscal year 2020, claims paid during the first five months of fiscal year 2020 totaled only $3.9 million, and 
actuarially determined premiums for the next two program years increase funding by a total of $4.5 million, in 
the event the negative trend repeats, it may result in deficit net position in the Program in the near future. 

The Authority should develop a plan for eliminating the negative net position balance that is in excess of the 
Excess Loss Reserve balance to ensure sufficient resources are available to pay claims and other costs of the 
Program when they come due. 

Management’s Response: 
The frequency and severity of losses have impacted the equity negatively for the last five years. At the 
November 2019 Board of Directors meeting this issue was given the highest attention. The Authority 
is currently reviewing options to implement in order to increase equity, i.e. raising retention levels, 
changing the funding to conventional actuarial method. Options will be brought to the March 2020 
Board of Directors meeting for consideration. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS OR PRONOUNCEMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

The following comment represents new pronouncements taking affect in the next few years.  We cite them 
here to keep you informed of developments: 

EFFECTIVE FISCAL YEAR 2019/20: 

GASB 84 – Fiduciary Activities 

The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The 
focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity 
and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify 
fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.  

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. 
Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type 
activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less.  

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other 
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial 
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent 
arrangement that meets specific criteria.  

A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements of a primary government, 
should combine its information with its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that 
combined information with the primary government’s fiduciary funds. 

This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event 
has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to 
disburse fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, 
approval, or condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets. 

GASB 90 – Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61) 

The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a 
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies 
that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a 
government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest 
that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a 
special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including 
permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the 
majority equity interest at fair value.  
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 

GASB 90 – Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61) (Continued) 

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should 
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the equity 
interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This Statement 
establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results in the 
government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the government 
should report that organization as a component unit.  

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest 
account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 
acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. 
Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only 
transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition. 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the provisions 
related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a component unit if the 
government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be applied on a prospective basis. 

EFFECTIVE FISCAL YEAR 2020/21: 

GASB 87 – Leases 

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.  This Statement increases the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying 
asset.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  

A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (the 
underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 
Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets this 
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this Statement.  
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

2018-01 Timely Preparation and Review of Journal Entries 

Journal entries are an important transaction cycle that affects all aspects of accounting and financial 
reporting. Prudent internal control concepts dictate that no single employee should process a transaction 
without the involvement of another employee.  Preparation and review of journal entries should also be 
completed in a timely manner.  As journal entry batches are prepared on a monthly basis, the review and 
approval should be completed within 30 days after month-end. 

We selected two monthly journal entry packets for timely preparation and review, and noted the journal 
entry packet for November 2017 was posted in February 2018 and the journal entry packet for February 
2018 was posted in April 2018, while both journal entry packets were not reviewed until April 2018. 

Without a timely review, there is an increased risk of error, improper accounting treatment, or misstated 
interim financial statements.  The Authority should ensure journal entries are prepared and reviewed 
timely, generally within 30 days after month-end. 

Current Status: 
See current year comment 2019-01. 

2018-02 Timely Preparation and Review of Bank and Investment Reconciliations 

To be an effective control, the Authority should complete bank and investment reconciliations as soon as 
possible after each month-end, usually within thirty to forty-five days of receipt of statements, and 
subsequently reviewed for accuracy and approved.  Errors and unreconciled differences should be 
researched, understood and corrected immediately, so as to prevent additional errors.   

The Authority’s policy is that the reconciliations are to be prepared timely each month and subsequently 
reviewed by the Treasurer on at least a quarterly basis, with a quarter usually being reviewed at one time. 

We reviewed the September 2017 and April 2018 bank and investment reconciliations and noted they 
were prepared in January 2018 and June 2018, respectively, and reviewed by the Treasurer in February 
2018 and August 2018, respectively.  We also noted that all of the Investment Reports for July 2017 to 
January 2018 were reviewed by the Treasurer in February 2018. 

We noted the Authority’s Treasurer is responsible for reviewing bank and investment reconciliations. It is 
the Authority’s practice to have investment reconciliations reviewed on a monthly-quarterly basis. The 
reconciliations are often reviewed simultaneously by the Treasurer. Although the review and approval 
schedule appears reasonable for the investment reconciliations, bank reconciliations should be reviewed 
on a more frequent basis.  Delays in review of bank reconciliations increase the risk of errors/fraud not 
being detected or corrected in a timely manner. 

The Authority should complete bank and investment reconciliations within 30-45 days after receiving the 
statements and the reconciliations should be reviewed by the Treasurer on a monthly to quarterly basis. 
Delays in preparation and review of reconciliations increase the risk of errors/fraud not being detected or 
corrected in a timely manner. 

Current Status: 
Implemented 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 

2018-03 Compliance with Check Signing Policy 

The Authority’s check signing policy requires two authorized signatures for checks over $10 thousand. 

We selected twenty-five non-claims-related disbursements for testing of supporting documentation and 
approval and noted that two of those disbursements were subject to the two authorized signatures 
requirement and one of those checks was not dual signed.  The disbursement was in the amount of 
$73,302 for the annual claims software licensing, hosting, support and maintenance fees.  During our 
testing of forty-seven claims-related disbursements, we noted that fourteen of the disbursements were 
subject to the two authorized signatures requirement and there were no exceptions. 

We understand the check was sent to the Board President for signature without the initial signature from 
General Manager, because he was on vacation. 

If check disbursements in an amount of $10 thousand or more are not dual signed, there is the risk that 
unauthorized disbursements may occur and the Authority is not in compliance with its disbursement 
policy. 

The Authority should develop a procedure to ensure that all checks in excess of $10 thousand are 
reviewed prior to distribution to ensure they are dual signed to comply with the Authority’s policy. 

Current Status: 
Implemented. 

2018-04 Billing Tenant for Utility Charges Timely 

The Authority’s tenant is responsible for paying all applicable utility charges as detailed in its rental 
agreement with the Authority.  It is the Authority’s responsibility to ensure the tenant is invoiced timely 
for the applicable period.  During our review of the Authority’s internal control environment, we noted 
that the Authority’s policy is to invoice its tenant on a semi-annual basis for utility costs. 

We reviewed the semi-annual invoice for the period July 2017 to December 2017, and noted it was not 
sent to the tenant until April 18, 2018. 

Delayed preparation of invoices could lead to an understatement of the Authority’s revenues and accounts 
receivable.  

The Authority should prepare and send the quarterly invoices to the tenant for utility costs in a timely 
manner to comply with the Authority’s policy. 

Current Status: 
Implemented. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 
OTHER MATTERS 

2018-05 Investment Policy Compliance 

Section IV(C), Reporting-Annually, of the Authority’s Investment Policy approved on December 15, 2016, 
requires the investment policy to be submitted to the Board of Directors for review and adoption annually. 

The Authority’s Investment Policy has not been reviewed and adopted since December 15, 2016.  We 
understand the adoption was on the agenda for the December 2017 Board meeting, but that meeting was 
cancelled and the item was not included on a subsequent agenda.  

The Authority should develop procedures to ensure the Investment Policy is reviewed and adopted on an 
annual basis, in compliance with the requirements of the Investment Policy. 

Current Status: 
Implemented. 

2017-01 Timely Preparation and Review of Journal Entries 

Journal entries are an important transaction cycle that affects all aspects of accounting and financial reporting. 
Prudent internal control concepts dictate that no single employee should process a transaction without the 
involvement of another employee.  For journal entries, this typically takes the form of a second employee 
performing a review and approving the proposed entry prior to posting.  The review and approval should be 
documented in some formal manner, such as by the reviewer signing and dating the journal entry to indicate 
that the review and approval have been completed in a timely manner. 

We selected journal entry batches for the months of December 2016 and March 2017 for testing of timely 
preparation, reasonableness and evidence of review and approval, and noted that the December 2016 journal 
entry batch included batches that were posted to the general ledger as late as March 2017.  In addition, the 
December 2016 journal entry batch was not reviewed until March 2017. 

Authority staff indicated that the late posting and review of the batches were due to the staff workload at that 
time. 

Without a timely posting and review of journal entry batches, the likelihood of error, improper accounting 
treatment, or misstated interim financial statements increase.  The Authority should develop procedures to 
ensure journal entries are prepared, reviewed and posted timely throughout the year, generally within thirty 
days of the month’s end. 

Current Status: 
See comments 2018-01 and 2019-01. 
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CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 
OTHER MATTERS 

2017-02 Allocation of Interest Income Among Programs 

GASB Statement No. 31 requires that interest income be allocated to all general ledger funds that participate in 
the investment pool. 

Historically, only the Authority’s Liability program has maintained a positive cash balance throughout the 
fiscal year, therefore, interest income is only recorded in the Liability Program.  However, as of June 30, 2017, 
the Property Program had an ending net position balance of $67,977 and interest was not allocated to this 
program.  The estimated potential allocation of interest for fiscal year 2017 was less than $1,500 for the 
Property Program. 

We noted a similar situation in fiscal year 2014; but the Authority did not intend for the Property Program to 
carry a net position balance.  However, the Program reported positive net position for the last two fiscal years. 

The Authority should determine whether the Property Program will continue to carry an ending net position 
balance and if so, allocate interest income in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31. 

Current Status: 
Implemented. 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
Board of Directors  
California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 
Livermore, California 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority for 
the year ended June 30, 2019.  Professional standards require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit under generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Accounting Policies  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new 
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. 
 
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements became effective, but did 
not have a material effect on the financial statements: 
 

GASB 88 – Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements 
 
GASB 83 – Certain Asset Retirement Obligations  
 

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas 
 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.  However, transactions related to the Liability Program’s reserve for losses 
have a material impact to the financial statements.  During fiscal year 2019 the Authority paid claims of over 
$20 million and the reserve for losses increased by $10 million to $51.8 million, which resulted in the 
Authority ending the fiscal year with net position in the Program of only $667 thousand.  As discussed in 
Memorandum on Internal Control comment 2019-03, the Authority should develop a plan for replenishing the 
net position of the Liability Program. 
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the Authority’s financial statements were: 

 
Estimated Fair Value of Investments: As of June 30, 2019, the Authority held approximately $46.7 
million of cash and investments as measured by fair value as disclosed in Note 2 to the Financial 
Statements.  Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect as of June 30, 2019.  These fair values 
are not required to be adjusted for changes in general market conditions occurring subsequent to June 
30, 2019.  
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Estimated Reserve for Losses:  Management’s estimate of the reserve for losses is disclosed in Note 4 
to the financial statements and is based on an actuarial study determined by a consultant, which is 
based on the claims experience of the Authority.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
to develop the estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Estimated Net Pension Liabilities and Pension-Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  
Management’s estimate of the net pension liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources are 
disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements and are based on accounting valuations determined by 
the California Public Employees Retirement System, which are based on the experience of the 
Authority.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and 
determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Estimated Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and OPEB-Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of 
Resources:  Management’s estimate of the net OPEB liability (asset) and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements and are based on an actuarial valuation 
and accounting valuation determined by a consultant, which is based on the experience of the 
Authority.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and 
determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

Disclosures 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result 
of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to 
each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  We have no such misstatements to report to the Board. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management representation 
letter dated December 16, 2019. 
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there 
were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and 
supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the required supplementary information and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information. 
 
We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompany the financial statements, but 
are not required supplementary information.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate 
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the Introductory and Statistical Sections which accompany the financial 
statements, but are not required supplementary information.  Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 

 
****** 

 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board and management and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Pleasant Hill, California 
December 16, 2019 
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